Listening, learning, changing

Ma Whakarongo me Ako ka huri te tai
Crown Response to the Abuse in Care Inquiry

COVERSHEET

Minister Hon Erica Stanford Portfolio | Lead Coordination Minister for
the Government’s Response to
the Royal Commission’s Report
into Historical Abuse in State
Care and in the Care of Faith-
based Institutions

Title of Meeting Pack — 17 Date to 30 September 2025

briefing September 2024 Ministerial | be

Group — Crown Response to | published
the Abuse in Care Inquiry

Withholding grounds

Information within this document has been withheld as if it had been requested under the
Official Information Act 1982. Where this is the case, the reasons for withholding have
been listed below. Where information has been withheld, no public interest has been
identified that would outweigh the reasons for withholding it.

¢ section 9(2)(f)(iv) to maintain the current constitutional conventions protecting the
confidentiality of advice tendered by Ministers and officials

e section 9(2)(g)(i) to maintain the effective conduct of public affairs through the free
and frank expression of opinions.

e section 9(2)(h) to maintain legal professional privilege

Some documents have been withheld in full under section 18(d) of the OIA as they are
already publicly available:

e Update paper titled 'Update on work to establish a redress package for survivors of
torture at the Lake Alice Unit' is available at: Proactive release of information on
redress for Lake Alice survivors of torture | Crown response to the Abuse in Care
Inquiry

o Cabinet Paper titled 'Final Report of the Abuse in Care Inquiry (Whanaketia): Initial
response’ is available at: Proactive release of information about Government's
initial response to Whanaketia the final report of the Abuse in Care Inquiry | Crown
response to the Abuse in Care Inquiry

e Cabinet Paper titled 'Omnibus Bill to Support the Initial Response and Amending
the Oranga Tamariki Act 1989 regarding search powers in secure residences and
other matters' is available at: Proactive release of information about law changes
to better protect people in care | Crown response to the Abuse in Care Inquiry

e Paper titled 'Draft Apology Text' final version is available at: Prime Minister
apologises for abuse in care | Beehive.govt.nz



https://www.abuseinquiryresponse.govt.nz/about-us/official-information/information-releases/cabinet-papers-and-minutes/proactive-release-of-information
https://www.abuseinquiryresponse.govt.nz/about-us/official-information/information-releases/cabinet-papers-and-minutes/proactive-release-of-information
https://www.abuseinquiryresponse.govt.nz/about-us/official-information/information-releases/cabinet-papers-and-minutes/proactive-release-of-information
https://www.abuseinquiryresponse.govt.nz/about-us/official-information/information-releases/cabinet-papers-and-minutes/proactive-release-of-information-about-final-report-of-the-abuse-in-care-inquiry-whanaketia-initial-response
https://www.abuseinquiryresponse.govt.nz/about-us/official-information/information-releases/cabinet-papers-and-minutes/proactive-release-of-information-about-final-report-of-the-abuse-in-care-inquiry-whanaketia-initial-response
https://www.abuseinquiryresponse.govt.nz/about-us/official-information/information-releases/cabinet-papers-and-minutes/proactive-release-of-information-about-final-report-of-the-abuse-in-care-inquiry-whanaketia-initial-response
https://www.abuseinquiryresponse.govt.nz/about-us/official-information/information-releases/cabinet-papers-and-minutes/proactive-release-of-information-about-law-changes-to-better-protect-people-in-care
https://www.abuseinquiryresponse.govt.nz/about-us/official-information/information-releases/cabinet-papers-and-minutes/proactive-release-of-information-about-law-changes-to-better-protect-people-in-care
https://www.beehive.govt.nz/speech/prime-minister-apologises-abuse-care
https://www.beehive.govt.nz/speech/prime-minister-apologises-abuse-care

Meeting pack - 17 september 2024
Ministerial Group — Crown Response to the Abuse in Care Inquiry

Membership:

e Hon Erica Stanford as Lead Coordination Minister for the Government’s Response to'the
Royal Commission’s Report into Historical Abuse in State Care and in the Care of Faith-
based Institutions (Chair) and as Minister of Education;

e Hon Dr Shane Reti as Minister of Health and Minister for Pacific Peoples;
e Hon Paul Goldsmith as Minister of Justice;

e Hon Louise Upston as Minister for Social Development and Employmeént and Minister for
Disability Issues;

e Hon Judith Collins KC as Attorney-General;
e Hon Mark Mitchell as Minister of Corrections and Minister of Police;

e Hon Tama Potaka as Minister for Maori Development and Maori Crown Relations: Te
Arawhiti;

e Hon Matt Doocey as Minister for ACC, Minister for Mental Health, and Minister for
Youth;

e Hon Karen Chhour as Minister for-Children and Minister for the Prevention of Family and
Sexual Violence; and

e Hon Casey Costello as Associate Minister of Health and Associate Minister of Police.

Hon Nicola Willis, as Minister of Finance and Minister for the Public Service is an invitee.

Meeting pack:
e Aide-mémoire: agenda and items for discussion;

e Update Paper: Update on work to establish a redress package for survivors of torture at
the-kake Alice Unit

o' _Letters from Ministers regarding portfolio responses to Royal Commission
e Draft Cabinet Paper: Final Report of the Abuse in Inquiry, Whanaketia: Initial Response

e Draft Cabinet Papers: Omnibus Bill to Support the Initial Response and Amending the
Oranga Tamariki Act 1989 regarding search powers in secure residences and other
matters

e Draft Apology Text

e Discussion paper: Initial information on a redress payment framework



- Update paper titled ‘Update on work to establish a redress package for survivors of torture at
the Lake Alice Unit' withheld under s 18(d) as this is already publicly available: https://

www.abuseinquiryresponse.govt.nz/about-us/official-information/information-releases/cabinet-
papers-and-minutes/proactive-release-of-information

- Cabinet Paper titled 'Final Report of the Abuse in Care Inquiry (Whanaketia): Initial resp
withheld under s 18(d) as this is already publicly available: https://
www.abuseinquiryresponse.govt.nz/about-us/official-information/information-releases/c t-
papers-and-minutes/proactive-release-of-information-about-final-report-of-the-ab i§q¢care-
inquiry-whanaketia-initial-response @

- Cabinet Paper titled 'Omnibus Bill to Support the Initial Response and A@ding the Oranga
Tamariki Act 1989 regarding search powers in secure residences and atters’ withheld
under s 18(d) as this is already publicly available: https://www.abusei Q‘yresponse.govt.nz/
about-us/official-information/information-releases/cabinet-papers- inutes/proactive-
release-of-information-about-law-changes-to-better-protect-pe

- Paper titled 'Draft Apology Text' withheld under s 18(d) Qﬁ\e inal version is already publicly
available: https://www.beehive.govt.nz/speech/prime-minister-apologises-abuse-care

- Last three attachments withheld in full (includini les) under s 9(2)(h)




Listening, learning, changing
Ma Whakarongo me Ako ka huri te tai
Crown Response to the Abuse in Care Inquiry

Aide-memoire

Agenda and items for discussion

For: Ministerial Group — Crown Response to the Abuse in Care Inquiry
Date: 13 September 2024 Security level:
Purpose

1. This pack provides the Ministerial group for the Crown Response to the:Abuse'in Care
Inquiry (the Ministerial Group) with an agenda and papers to support its discussion at
5pm on Tuesday, 17 September 2024.

Agenda

Item Timing

1. Lake Alice (Restricted item — Crown Law, MoH@and'CRU officials only) 20 minutes

2. Letters from Ministers and associated Cabinet papers 20 minutes

- Initial view of agency response deliverables.
- Omnibus Bill

3. Initial decisions to support options fora redress payment framework 20 minutes

- Seeking endorsement of two aspects of payments to be made as part of
redress systems — payménts’ purpose and objectives

4. Planning for national apology 15 minutes

- Early draft of the apology
- Planning for the day

5. Other business 15 minutes

- Recent'and upcoming litigation — response and approach
Ministers advising on any litigation underway in their portfolios with a focus
oh,/or the significant involvement of, survivors of abuse in care

< > Establishment of Survivor Redress Design Advisory Group and proactive
release of Redress Design Group proposals

Item 1:Lake Alice

2.% This item provides information for further discussion about the delivery of redress for
torture at the Lake Alice Child and Adolescent Unit

Item 2: Letters from Ministers and associated Cabinet papers

3. Three appended draft Cabinet papers which reflect the outcome of letters provided by
Ministers on responding to the recommendations of the Royal Commission.



The first paper on the final report of the Royal Commission of Inquiry into Historical
Abuse in State Care and in the Care of Faith-based Institutions (the Royal Commission)
discusses the content of Whanaketia and the broad shifts it proposes; a proposed
approach to accepting the findings; and an initial triage of the recommendations. This
includes a set of recommendations that can be implemented by 12 November 2024 and
a set of recommendations that can be agreed by 12 November and implemented soon
after that. This paper was circulated for Ministerial consultation on Monday 9
September. The appended version has been updated, in track changes, to reflect the
outcome of letters provided by Ministers.

The second and third papers seek policy decisions on a small number of legislative
change proposals that are proposed for introduction and first reading on the day of the
public apology (12 November). These papers will be merged prior to lodgement for the
Social Outcomes Committee.

Both papers are scheduled for lodging on 19 September, for considération at Social
Outcomes Committee on 25 September.

Item 3: Initial decisions to support options for a redress.payment framework

7.

The Ministerial Group is considering key parameters for the redesign of redress in a
stepped process. The next parameter is the development of a common payment
framework for redress, which could potentially’be‘applied across claims agencies and
potentially other Crown redress processes such as those operated by school boards of
trustees.

Payments are a significant proportion of‘a redress system’s overall cost. Given the
potential financial implications, it.is.important the Minister of Finance and the
Ministerial Group has sufficient time to consider the different elements of a payment
framework before options-areitaken forward to Cabinet.

The discussion paper fof this item seeks endorsement of payments’ purpose and
objectives, and agreement to cross-agency work to prepare draft payment structure
options that addréss the endorsed purpose and objectives. Advice on the payment
structure optians will include an assessment against the objectives, potential cost
estimates, and consideration of the balance of resources for payments versus support
services:

Item 4: Planning for national apology

10.

11.

This item seeks initial feedback from Ministers on the current draft text for the apology
to be made to survivors by the Prime Minister on 12 November event. This is appended
under item 4.

The draft apologies text is provided to Ministers in parallel to consideration by the PMO
so that Ministers have an opportunity to highlight any initial responses to the draft. Full
consultation with Ministers and agencies will be undertaken on the draft apologies text
as part of the Cabinet paper being prepared for SOU committee scheduled for

16 October 2024.



12. Afirst draft of the apology was circulated amongst agencies in May this year for their
review. At the same time, Crown Law also reviewed the draft to identify both what
liability risks it might give rise to and to identify any legal risks that needed to be

mitigated through re-drafting. In response to liability questions, SE2)(EIINEEE_GN—

13. The CRU incorporated all feedback received. Aspects of the current draft remain
highlighted for ongoing consideration or as placeholder text to incorporate decisions
that Cabinet is considering in parallel. This is particularly to enable reflection of
decisions that Cabinet makes on redress and on legislative changes, and to incorporate
an outline of any specific responses to the Royal Commission’s findings and
recommendations that are ready to be announced by 12 November.

14. The draft text will be updated following receipt of the Prime Minister s views on the
appended draft. Crown Law will then be asked to review the draft téxt again to ensure
any remaining liability risks are identified and can be mitigated. The next draft of the
text will be included in the Cabinet paper being prepared-for.SOU committee scheduled
for 16 October 2024, and which Ministers and agencieswill be consulted on.

15. An A3 that sets out planning for the apology events‘surrounding the delivery of the
apology itself, both at Parliament and concurrentievents in Auckland, Wellington and
Christchurch, will be tabled at the meeting.

Item 5: Other Business

Recent and upcoming litigation

16. Ministers have been invited.te-outline for the Group any litigation occurring in their
portfolios that have a focus-on, or the major involvement of, survivors of abuse in care.
Aide memoires from Crown Law, Oranga Tamariki and the Crown Response Unit have
been provided on recent litigation.

Release of Redress .Design Group proposals

17. Discuss-the proactive release of the Redress Design Group proposals the week of 23
Septémber.



Hon Paul Goldsmith

Minister for Arts, Culture and Heritage
Minister of Justice

Minister for Media and Communications
Minister for State Owned Enterprises
Minister for Treaty of Waitangi Negotiations

10 September 2024

Hon Erica Stanford

Lead Coordination Minister for the Government's Response to the Royal Commission's Report intg
Historical Abuse in State Care and in the Care of Faith-based Institutions

Parliament Buildings

Wellington 6160

Dear Erica

Response to the Ministry of Justice-led recommendations of the Royal Commission of
Inquiry into Abuse in Care

| am writing to inform you of my proposed response to the recommendations from the Royal
Commission of Inquiry into Abuse in State Care and the Care.of Faith-based Institutions (the Royal
Commission) being led by the Ministry of Justice (the Ministry). This includes recommendations
from the Royal Commission’s 2021 Redress Report, He. Purapura Ora, he Mara Tipu: From
Redress to Puretumu Torowhanui and its Final Report, Whanaketia — through pain and trauma,
from darkness to light, released in July 2024.

I note that decisions to progress work on thesé.recommendations does not necessarily mean that
they will be implemented exactly as recommended by the Royal Commission.

Six recommendations are, or'will be, meaningfully underway before the public apology

The following recommendations will be meaningfully underway at the time of the Prime Minister's
public apalogy to survivors of abuse in care, on 12 November 2024:

e Final Report Recommendation 26 — amend the Crimes Act 1961 to specifically include
disability-within the definition of a vulnerable adult. This amendment can be included in the
ompiibus bill proposed for introduction on the night of the public apology.

e~ 1Final Report Recommendation 31 —establish a list of specialist lawyers available to provide
legal advice on abuse in care cases. Note this is a duplication of Redress Report
recommendation 81. My officials are working with the New Zealand Law Society (NZLS)
to identify the most appropriate host for a list.

e Final Report Recommendation 27 — amend the Sentencing Act 2002 to recognise the

vulnerabilities of victims of abuse in care as aggravating features. This will be incorporated
into the Sentencing Reform Amendment Bill scheduled for introduction this month.

Private Bag 18041, Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6160, New Zealand | +64 4 817 6806 | p.goldsmith@ministers.govt.nz



e Redress Report Recommendation 78 - amend the Limitation Act 1950 and Limitation Act
2010, to remove limitation provisions for abuse in care survivors. Work to consider whether
to progress this recommendation will start in October.

e Final Report Recommendation 119(a) — amend the New Zealand Bill of Rights Act 1990 to
introduce a stand-alone right to security of the person, to better align with the Intemational

Covenant on Civil and Political Rights. G2
]

e Final Report Recommendation 25 — the government should support and invest in judicial-
led initiatives, such as Te Ao Marama — Enhancing Justice for All, that recognise.and
address the harm caused by abuse and/or neglect in care.

Two recommendations will be incorporated into forthcoming Ministry reviews
Consideration of the following recommendations will be included in futurereviews:

e Final Report Recommendation 30 —-amend the Victims’ Rights'‘Act 2002 to advise survivors
of the ability to seek redress and support available. Thiswill‘be incorporated into a future
review of the Victims Rights Act.

e Final Report Recommendation 37 — review the Legal Services Act 2011 to remove barriers
to civil proceedings. | will consider this for inclusion in the review of the legal aid scheme,
indicatively scheduled for 2025. The progression of the legal aid scheme review is subject
to advice | will receive from officials in/October. Should that advice result in any significant
changes to the proposed progression of recommendation 37, | will advise your Office.

Three recommendations will be.incorporated into the long-term work programme
The Ministry’s continuous improvement work will consider:

e Final Report” Recommendation 38 — amend the Evidence Act 2006 to enhance
communication“assistance and access to alternative ways of giving evidence. | do not
anticipatethat this will be a dedicated work-stream but instead the recommendation will be
considered as part of the Ministry’s ongoing regulatory stewardship work and any future
review of the Evidence Act.

Two further recommendations are on the Ministry’s long-term work programme and will be
considered as priorities allow:

e Final Report Recommendation 29 — amend the Criminal Records (Clean Slate) Act 2004
to ensure that survivors are not unfaidy excluded from eligibility under the Act.

e Final Report Recommendation 119(d) — review the Human Rights Act 1993 to consider
human rights protections in care settings as part of a wider review of the Act. This will also
incorporate consideration of 119(e), relating to effective implementation of the relevant
rights, including positive duties.

Private Bag 18041, Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6160, New Zealand | +644817 6806 | p.goldsmith®ministers.govt.nz



Three recommendations will not be progressed
| have decided not to progress the following two recommendations:

e Redress Report Recommendation 79 — review obstacles to civil litigation, including a
survivor's right to litigate or relitigate a case that has been settled or a judgment has been
issued on, and direct the Law Commission to recommend any additional corrective steps:

As | have already directed officials to progress work addressing obstacles to civil litigation
identified by the Royal Commission, including recommendation 37 (addressing financial
barriers) and recommendation 78 (reviewing the Limitation Acts), | do not, consider
dedicating resource to identifying additional obstacles is needed at this time.

e Redress Report Recommendation 75 — create in legislation a right to’be free from abuse
in care and a non-delegable duty to ensure all reasonably practicable’ steps are taken to
protect this right, and direct liability for a failure to fulfil the duty:

| consider the intent of this recommendation will be ‘adequately addressed through
progressing the Royal Commission’s Final Report recommendations relating to human

rights legislation. G2 (i) —
R .
A
B B B B A b B D S e
> \ .
N

In addition, 1 consider that no further work should be progressed on:

¢ Redress Report Recommendation 80 — review and consider raising the rates available for
abuse in care work. Changes were made to legal aid through Budget 2022 that address
this 2021 recommendation. A 12 percent increase in hourly rates came into effect on 1 July
2022. In additior, an increase in eligibility rates, increase in debt repayment thresholds,
removal of.intérest and removal of the $50 user charge came into effecton 1 January 2023.

These changes applied across civil proceedings, not solely to abuse in care work. To reflect
the complexity of some cases, including abuse in care cases, legal aid providers may
reguest funding for additional hours. The Legal Services Commissioner also has the
discretion to increase the hourly rate for legal aid providers “in complex cases where a
special set of skills or experience is required.”

In light of this, and the work that | anticipate will be progressed on recommendation 33
(education and training for legal professionals), | consider recommendation 80 has been
adequately addressed at this point. As noted above, | will shortly consider the scope of the
triennial review of the legal aid scheme and there may an opportunity to look further at
legal aid rates as part of that review.

Private Bag 18041, Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6160, New Zealand | +64 4 8176806 | p.goldsmith@ministers.govt.nz



My officials are supporting two other portfolio-related recommendations

The following recommendations are directed to the judiciary/court and logal profoccion. Tho
Ministry, while not leading the response, will support the judiciary and NZLS in their consideration
of these recommendations.

* Final Report Recommendation 36 — the courts should prioritise civil proceedings regarding
care or abuse and neglect in State or faith-based care to minimise litigation delays. 92}

e e
e ()

e Final Report Recommendation 33 — ensure that legal professionals and judges,receive
education and training on the Royal Commission’s findings and related: subjects (e.g.
trauma-informed investigative and prosecution processes and human/(rights concepts).
Note that this recommendation duplicates and builds on Redress Report,recommendation
81. This recommendation has been referred to the Office of the Chief Justice and the NZLS
and we will continue to engage with them to support its progression:.

Justice officials will continue to support the multi-agency aspects.ofthe Crown response, including
on recommendations for which there are Justice portfolio implications.

| look forward to working with you as we continue efforts'to ‘develop a meaningful response to the
Royal Commission’s recommendations for survivors-of abuse in care.
Yours sincerely

Cicant

Hon Paul Goldsmith
Minister of Justice

Private Bag 18041, Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6160, New Zealand | +644 8176806 | p.goldsmith®ministers.govt.nz



Office of Hon Matt Doocey

Minister for ACC

Minister for Mental Health

Minister for Tourism and Hospitality
Minister for Youth

Associate Minister of Health
Associate Minister of Transport

09 SEP 2024

Hon Erica Stanford

Lead Coordination Minister for the Government’s Response to the Royal Commission’s
Report into Historical Abuse in State Care and the Care of Faith-based Institutions
Parliament Buildings

Wellington

Dear Erica,

Royal Commission of Inquiry into Abuse in State Care (and Faith-based Institutions)

| would like to assure you that | am committed to progressing the’Government's response to
the recommendations of the final report of the Royal Condmission of Inquiry into Abuse in
Care, Whanaketia — through pain and trauma, from darkness to light (Whanaketia).

As Minister for both ACC and Mental Health | have responsibility for a number of
recommendations in the final report, and to lead and support the change that is required to
ensure that survivors receive redress and p€ople in care are safe and protected.

In relation to my ACC Portfolio, whilé1'do not consider that the recommendation relating to
ACC should progress, there is still arole for the Ministry of Business, Innovation and
Employment (MBIE) and ACCito play in continuing to support the Government's response.
In relation to my Mental-Health Portfolio, | am pleased to advise you that the Ministry of
Health and Health New‘Zealand have already progressed, and continue to progress, work to

support the respofise-to Whanaketia.

Further details afe set out in Appendix 1 — ACC Portfolio, and Appendix 2 — Mental Health
Portfoliot

Yours.sincerely,

™ ,
{'\\/\ [\/\ 5 W \

Hon Matt Doocey
Minister for ACC
Minister for Mental Health

Private Bag 18041, Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6160, New Zealand +64 4 817 6812 | m.doocey@ministers.govt.nz



Appendix 1 - ACC Portfolio
The final report of the Abuse in Care Royal Commission of Inquiry (the Royal Commission),

Whunuhetiv: Through pain and trauma, fium darkiess v Iight, has one recommendation on \
the Accident Compensation Scheme (AC Scheme): @Q

Recommendation 11 @

If the government does not progress the )nquiry’s recommended civil litigation reforms &
(Holistic Redress Recommendations 75 and 78 from the Inquiry’s interim report, AQ
He Purapura Ora, he Mara Tipu: From Redress to Puretumu Torowhanui): O

tailored compensation for survivors of abuse and neglect in care an

* the government should reform the accident compensation (ACC) sc&@ow‘de
appropriate remedies

e survivors should be fairly and meaningfully compensated for &kect and indirect
losses flowing from the abuse and neglect they experienced-in.care and that are
covered by the new puretumu torowhanui system and

e the application process should be survivor-focuse @ma-informed and delivered
in a culturally and linguistically appropriate man

This recommendation essentially repeats the con
Royal Commission's interim report He Purapur:
Puretumu Torowhanui (the Redress Report
right to sue for personal injury for abuse i , or to instead consider empowering a new
redress scheme to award compensation, or expanding AC Scheme cover and entitlements
for abuse in care. In Whanaketia, t yal Commission criticises government decisions to
defer consideration of these Re Report recommendations.

of previous recommendations in the
he Mara Tipu | From Redress to
ished in December 2021): to re-instate the




MBIE and ACC have skills and experience in the different choices and trade-offs involved in
an entitlement-based support scheme, as distinct from the safety net approach of the social
welfare system, and the population health focus of the health system. Both agencies have
also been involved in ensuring interactions work effectively between separate schemes,




when supporting previous work by the New Zealand Defence Force to establish the
Veterans' Support Scheme.

The goal would be to design a scheme that complements but does not duplicate the AC
Scheme — in the same way the Veterans’ Support Scheme does for veterans. There are a
number of models we could consider for such a scheme, involving new or existing agencies
and operational functions across government.

MBIE has advised me that it can support cross-agency work on policy design for a redress
scheme. This work is being led by the Crown Response Unit. We understand this work is‘oft
a timeframe where there will be meaningful progress before the apology on 12 November,
but with further work and decisions continuing beyond this date.

ACC will continue to engage with the overall cross-government response, althiough it
currently has a strong organisational focus on responding to declining rehabilitation
performance.

As you are aware, MBIE is also providing advice on high level opfions to respond to the
needs of Lake Alice survivors of torture, including the steps, timing and resourcing required
to progress these options.

ACC’s operational role

Whanaketia recommends that government supgoris“and adequately invests in programmes
for children, young people and adults who ar&in‘care, or are at risk of being placed in care,
to increase knowledge about abuse and_neglett, and build skills and tools to help individuals
to protect themselves.

ACC will continue to work with the'Crown Response Unit on how ACC can best support
these recommendations. This could include sharing insights from ACC’s work on sexual
violence prevention. ACC has a range of sexual violence prevention initiatives that focus on
strengthening cultural identity and social connectedness, to stop violence and harm before it
happens. This includes-working with community organisation such as faith-based institutions
and local councils'toybuild an understanding of the drivers of sexual violence and strengthen
the protective factors to prevent sexual violence.

Whanaketia recommends that all State and faith-based entities providing care (directly and
indirectly) ensure appropriate policies and procedures are in place to respond to complaints,
disclostres or incidents of abuse and neglect. ACC will engage with Crown Response
agencies to ensure its processes align with broader work on complaints and disclosures.

I will continue to engage with ACC on how survivors of abuse in care are being supported for
their physical and mental injuries through the AC Scheme. ACC informs me that, when
identified, claims from survivors of abuse in care are allocated to a claims manager with
specialist experience as quickly as possible.



Appendix 2 — Mental Health Portfolio

The Ministry of Health and Health New Zealand have significant work underway to support
the response to Whanaketia. There are 79 recommendations that have been identified as
requiring Health’s input to varying degrees. Some of this work was already complete when
the final report was presented to Parliament, other work is still underway.

Work that is already completed

Nga Paerewa Health and Disability Standards — Contributes to the response of
recommendation 39

Nga Paerewa Health and disability standards (Nga Paerewa) came into effect on 28
February 2022. The updated Standard sets out the steps service providers need.to take to
ensure they are providing safe, quality services, and outlines what people-can expect from
the services they receive. Nga Paerewa has strengthened key areas ingliding restraint and
seclusion, infection prevention and control, obligations under Te Tirifi,/and the lived
experience of patients, residents and whanau. People are empowered to make decisions
about their own care and support and be active participants in‘the service to achieve their
goals, with a stronger focus on outcomes for people receiving support.

Providers of fertility services, primary maternity services\that provide overnight postnatal
care, hospices, overnight hospital inpatient serviges (public and private), age-related
residential care, residential addiction, mental health, and disability services are required to
comply with Nga Paerewa.

Protection measures against pain comipliance and restraint — Aligned with Recommendation
72

In 2023, the Ministry of Healthuissued revised guidance on the use of seclusion and restraint
under the Mental Health (Compulsory Assessment and Treatment) Act 1992 (the Mental
Health Act). These guidélines now include a stronger emphasis on person-centred and
culturally appropriate-approaches to safely reduce the use of seclusion and restraint in
mental health services.

Safe Practice Effective Communication is a national training course that supports the best
and least restrictive practice in mental health inpatient units. The course does not support
the wse of pain compliance techniques for service users of any age and teaches alternative
ways-of working to minimise restraint. It is my understanding that all mental health and
hospital-level intellectual disability services require ward staff to do complete the training,
with the exception of one forensic mental health service that is in the process of
implementing it.

Measures to minimise and eliminate the use of seclusion — Aligned with Recommendation
74

Mental health services are working towards the elimination of seclusion over time. To
support this, a nationwide collaborative project between the Health Quality and Safety



Commission and the mental health sector was launched in 2019. The use of seclusion in
health and disability facilities is only permitted if a person is subject to one of two statutory
systems: the Mental Health Act or the Intellectual Disability (Compulsory Care and
Rehabilitation) Act 2003 (Intellectual Disability Act).

The regulatory requirements for the use of seclusion have been strengthened in recent years
by:
* Guidelines for the use of seclusion and restraint under the Mental Health Act
published in April 2023
e Guidelines for the use of seclusion under the Intellectual Disability Act introduced in
2020
* Nga Paerewa Health and Disability Services Standard
» The monitoring of the use of seclusion by district inspectors, who are appointed to
uphold the rights of people under the Mental Health Act and Intellectdal Disability Act,
and the Director of Mental Health
* Annual reporting on the use of seclusion by the Ministry of Health,

Work that is underway and expected to be completed in 12.months or less
Lake Alice redress — Aligned with recommendation 6 and/7

The Government is considering options for redress. for survivors who experienced torture at
the Lake Alice Psychiatric Hospital Child and Adolesgent Unit. However, this will come too
late for some survivors who do not have long 6 live due to terminal iliness. The Ministry of
Health is working to provide payments to contribute towards end-of life care and/or funeral
costs for a small number of survivors of the Lake Alice Unit who have a terminal illness and
six months or less to live. These paymierits are available until redress for torture is finalised,
at which point the payments will be reviewed.

Mental Health Bill - Aligned with-fultiple recommendations

The Mental Health Bill hés'been drafted and has undergone Ministerial consultation, which
closed on 23 August2024. It is anticipated to progress to the Cabinet Legislation Committee
in September 2024 for introduction into Parliament shortly after.

The bill intends to shift mental health legislation towards a more rights-based and recovery
approach'to compulsory mental health care. There are parts of the bill that will address some
of the recommendations of Whanaketia that relate to care and treatment in mental health
facilities, including aligning with the Commission’s Care Safety Principles.

Redress design and development — Aligned with muitiple recommendations

The Crown Response Unit is working through the design and development of the redress
system for survivors. The Ministerial Group on the Abuse in Care Royal Commission of
Inquiry (the Ministerial Group) has provided feedback on six eligibility parameters which
define the scope of redress coverage. | will continue to work with the Ministerial Group and
the Ministry of Health in the development and design of the redress system.



Mental Health Infrastructure Programme — Aligned with Recommendation 73

The 2020 National Asset Management Programme report, which assessed the state of
infrastructure built by the 20 former district health boards, found that 70 percent of mentai
health facilities do not meet therapeutic and safety requirements.

Health New Zealand delivers the Mental Health Infrastructure Programme which links
together 16 mental health and addiction infrastructure projects. A total of $997.3 million of
public and private funding has been allocated across the 16 projects to build modern, fit for.
purpose mental health facilities. The design of the new facilities refiects input from service
users and communities and supports the delivery of contemporary models of mentalhealth
care which emphasise privacy, dignity, wellbeing and the safety of patients and staff.

The programme has completed three projects to date and a further eight are.in"progress.
Changes in workforce regulatory settings — Aligned with recommendation 57

The Ministry of Health is looking at options to improve the regulatory settings for New
Zealand’s health workforce, including by making changes to the turrent Health Practitioners
Competence Assurance Act 2003. This includes consideration of an alternative form of
regulation that would be suitable for lower risk services, such as professions that are
currently self-regulated or unreguiated. The Minisfry of Health is considering levels of
regulation that would avoid imposing unnecessary.regulatory and financial burden, while
ensuring sufficient oversight, quality and safety., Consideration of this model is still in its early
stages, and further analysis and consultation.is required before any decisions are made on
whether it is suitable to progress. As care'workforces cover both health and social services,
the Ministry of Health is working clogely with the Ministry of Social Development in this area.

Further work in the next 12 months and beyond

The Ministry of Health and Health New Zealand have advised me that more time is needed
to consider the funding and resourcing that may be required for any future work to respond
to the recommendations in Whanaketia. There are work programmes and measures already
in place in theMinistry of Health and Health New Zealand that may partially respond to some
of the health-spécific recommendations of Whanaketia. However, the extent to which these
activities address the recommendations is unknown at this time and will need to be
considered in upcoming discussions between Health New Zealand and the Ministry of
Health:

The Crown Response Unit has completed an initial high-level triage of the recommendations
from the final report and opportunities to progress responses to recommendations that can
be readily agreed. This analysis will be brought to Ministers and Cabinet in mid-September
for formal decisions on the direction for recommendations for early progression and to
commission work on recommendations which may be more complex and far-reaching.



Once formal decisions are made for progressing recommendations, the Ministry of Health
and Health New Zealand has advised me that they will be able to advise on the actions that
can be taken to progress the health-specific recommendations.

Pending Cabinet approval, the Crown Response Office will be established within the Public
Service Commission. The establishment of an Office responds to recommendation 123 of
the final report. The Office will have the mandate to drive action across Government
agencies, ensuring this work is treated as a priority. The Ministry of Health and Health New
Zealand anticipate that it will drive action in response to the recommendations of
Whanaketia.



Hon Nicola Willis Y &
Minister of Finance 9 ‘i-_ 3; , ;
Minister for the Public Service &2 _%.
Minister for Social Investment \;,),;A:,.h'}" e
Associate Minister of Climate Change g\

9 August 2024

Hon Erica Stanford
Minister Responsible for Co-ordinating the Crown Response to the Abuse in Care Inquiry

Dear Erica

Thank you for your continued hard work on the Crown Response to the Royal Commission gnAbuse in Care.
| am writing to you in my capacity as the Minister of Finance following the meeting with the Prime Minister
and Crown Response Ministers on 26 August. At this meeting, we discussed the signifieant breadth of the
Final Report's recommendations and the need to be considered in our approachs-identifying which actions
can be delivered in coming months, and which ones will need more time.

Whilst as Finance Minister | do not have any specific recommendations that fall within my Finance portfolio,
| am taking the opportunity to outline how the Treasury can support the development of redress options. |
am firm in my belief that we must support survivors with respect,and care, and this includes careful
consideration and due process in making decisions. Cabinet hasyagreed to four core objectives for redress
options, including managing affordability, risks, and liability. , Itis important that support for survivors remains
deliverable and sustainable, and this means that the system must be fiscally responsible.

I recognise that there are inherent uncertainties in estimating the fiscal impact of redress. One driver of this
uncertainty is the complex interaction of design“choices, such as eligibility, timeliness, and evidence
thresholds, and how these impact on the overall fiséal cost. Work on redress should be informed by analysis
of these interactions and their fiscal impacts, so that potential redress options and related trade-offs are clear.
Deliverability and implementation are intedral considerations to ensure that the end service is efficient and
provides survivors with meaningful support. “This means deliverability and implementation should be part of
redress option development from th&“outset, with consideration given to supports that are already being
delivered in the system.

Treasury officials are able (fo”continue working with the Crown Response Unit on this important work.
Treasury can support with undérstanding the fiscal impacts of potential options and trade-offs, advice on the
payments framework @nd,&dvice on overall funding options for a future system, including impacts on future
Budgets. There will Deed to be a systematic approach to redress option development, with clear frameworks,
overarching governance and timeframes that recognise the significance of this work. This includes careful
attention to due’process and ensuring adequate time for consideration of significant proposals, including
feedback and‘advice on Cabinet papers.

| want\té-thank you again for your work in co-ordinating the Government's response to the Royal
Conimission’s findings and recommendations to this point and over the coming months.

Kind regards

[zt

Hon Nicola Willis
Minister of Finance

Private Bag 18041, Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6160, New Zealand | +64 4817 6801 | nwillis@ministers.govt.nz



Office of Hon Nicola Willis

Minister of Finance

Minister for the Public Service
Minister for Social Investment
Associate Minister of Climate Change

9 September 2024

Hon Erica Stanford

Lead Coordination Minister, Government's Response to the Royal Commission’s Report into
Historical Abuse in State Care and in the Care of Faith-based Institutions

Parliament Buildings

Wellington 6160

Dear Erica

RE: Public Service Portfolio contribution to the Crown response, t6 the inquiry into
abuse in care

At a meeting on 26 August 2024, the Prime Minister, Rt Hon, Christopher Luxon, asked
ministers to write to you to set out the steps being taken ifi their porfolios to respond to the
recommendations from the inquiry into abuse in care. This\letter sets out immediate actions |
am taking to address the inquiry’s recommendations_in-my Public Service Portfolio, and
signals other work underway or planned that will contribute to, and help enable, a strong
Crown response.

Public Service Portfolio

As Minister for the Public Service | have responsibilities around the design, performance and
capabilities of the public sector system The Royal Commission report recommendations
relevant to the Public Service portfolio include institutional arrangements to deliver on the
response, proposals to strengtherrcare safety, and the organisation and oversight of redress
functions for survivors. Some of these recommendations are able to be advanced promptly,
while others will require further.work with other relevant Ministers and agencies to scope and
decide on the best course of action. The findings of the report also speak to a need to ensure
promotion and monitoring of integrity in the public service. This is an important and ongoing
focus for the Public Service Commission.

Immediate actions being taken
Establishing.a«Crown Response Office - led by a dedicated chief executive

As you dré.aware, an early step we have taken (via our recent joint Cabinet paper) relates to
the Royal Commission’s recommendation to establish an Office, within a central agency, to
lead@nd coordinate the Crown response (recommendations 123-124). On 2 September 2024,
Cabinet agreed to establish a Crown Response Office (the Office) hosted by the Public Service
Commission (PSC) and authorised the recruitment of a Functional Chief Executive to lead the
Office [CAB-24-MIN-0331 refers].

Actioning this recommendation now will help to ensure a coordinated Crown response work
programme and implementation approach, with the Functional Chief Executive (FCE)
reporting directly to you and providing dedicated and strong leadership for the Crown
response. Hosting the Office with the Public Service Commission will provide clear separation
from delivery agencies involved in the care system and ensure this work has the necessary
emphasis and oversight, as reflected in the Royal Commission’s recommendations.

Private Bag 18041, Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6160, New Zealand | +64 4817 6801 | n.willis@ministers.govt.nz



PSC is working to establish the new Office, including taking steps to ensure a smooth transition
of functions and staff from the Crown Response Unit. To formally establish the FCE role, | will
shortly bring to Cabinet the necessary Orders in Council under the Public Service Act 2020
and return to Cabinct with an appointmenl pape:, fullowing a recrultment process led by PSC.
I will continue to work closely with you around these aspects of the response.

Chief executives joining-up to deliver the Crown response

Another step we are taking now is resetting chief executive arrangements to support the
response. Chief executives will be accountable for specific actions in response plans. These
plans will be coordinated and monitored through the Office and will be part of those chief
executives’ performance expectations. The new focus is about driving action.\on
recommendations, ensuring a strong and coordinated response across public. sérvice
agencies with clear lines of accountability for delivery. To facilitate this, | have asked the
Deputy Public Service Commissioner, Rebecca Kitteridge, to chair, with the'suppert of the
Functional Chief Executive, a group of chief executives with key responsibilities across the
Crown response. The chief executive’s group will provide for the focus and coordination
needed to deliver a timely and well considered response. | have asked, that all Ministers be
informed of the progress being delivered by this forum through regdlar sharing of meeting
outputs. | expect the PSC will also continue to leverage its performance management levers
to drive action and support chief executive accountability for defivery of the response.

Personal accountability for public servants involved in ablise in State care

In parallel to the Government response to the Rayal Commission report recommendations, |
have asked the PSC to provide assurance that claims of individual public servant misconduct
made by the Royal Commission are adequatély ‘addressed as these raise issues of trust,
confidence, and integrity in the Public Serviee. To support this, the PSC is engaging with care
agencies and Police to identify public servants about whom concerns have been raised, with
a specific focus on those who have been accused in the final report of either abusing people
in the care of the State, or of coveringsup such abuse. Where any such public servants are
identified, PSC will work with the jrelevant agency to ensure that these allegations are
addressed appropriately by thé agency to ensure personal accountability for public servants
involved in abuse in State care. | have asked for fortnightly updates on the progress of this
work.

Other work underway
Advising on machinery of government-related proposals

As noted earlier; there are areas where further work is needed before action can be fully
considered or taken. This includes recommendations around the design, form and location of
possible new functions. For example, the Royal Commission recommends a new cross-sector
Care/Safe Agency, consolidation of some existing system oversight functions, and a new
independent agency to deliver the redress system. These proposals need to be worked
through in detail and in partnership with other agencies - recognising that institutional
arrangements and agency form hinge on detailed design work around roles and functions.
The Public Service Commission will continue to support this work and lead machinery of
government components including around recommendations 41-43, 85-87, and the redress
recommendations. | am happy to work with you to ensure this work is progressed at pace.



Leveraging the integrity work programme

The Royal Commission report highlighted systemic failing across the Public Service. It is vital
we retain and build trust and confidence in the Public Service, including by ensuring that public
servants work with integrity. The PSC has set expectations including through guidance (eg,
He Aratohu, Integrity and Conduct guidelines), model standards (eg, Workforce Assurance
model standards which focus on ensuring any serious integrity issues are disclosed when
employing people in the Public Service), and empowering legislation (eg Protected
Disclosures (Protection of Whistleblowers) Act 2022) developed or updated in recent years to
promote and uphold integrity within and across public service agencies. There is more to do
to embed these through resources, initiatives and using performance levers available tq the
PSC to ensure integrity issues are promptly identified and addressed. This is a key focus, for
the PSC integrity work programme going forward and | have requested monthly updates on
the progress of this work.

Yours sincerely

[ra SRy

Hon Nicola Willis
Minister for the Public Service



Hon Mark Mitchell

Minister of Corrections
Minister for Emergency Management and Recovery
Minister of Police

10 September 2024

Hon Erica Stanford
Lead Minister for RCOI into Historical Abuse in State Care and in the Care of Faith-based Institutions

Dear Minister

New Zealand Police and Department of Corrections response to the Royal Commission of Inquiry
into Historical Abuse in State Care and in the Care of Faith-based Institutions (RCQI)

As you know, the Prime Minister has asked all relevant Ministers to updateyou as Lead Coordination
Minister on our respective agencies’ responses to the RCOL. In particular:

1. Work each agency already has underway,
2. Work each agency can complete in the next 6-10 weeks before the apology date, and
3. Work each agency can meaningfully have (indéfway before the 12 November apology.

Updates from New Zealand Police and the Bepartment of Corrections are provided below.

Part One: New Zealand Police

The following updates are based on the understanding that:

»  No additional funding Will be made available for Police to respond to the RCOI, and this will
need to be delivered and prioritised from within business-as-usual resources, having regard to
other Police priorities and demands (including recent announcements on proposals to realign
Police’s\carporate workforce, as part of the organisation’s Financial Sustainability Programme).

»  Poliee Will lead, or provide significant support to, the response to the following 13 RCOI
fecommendations, with other recommendations requiring minimal Police input:

¢~ Recommendation 3 — Apology (Lead and Support)

e Recommendation 6 — Investigation (Lead)

e Recommendation 24 — Prosecution Guidelines (Support)
Recommendation 33 — Training (Lead)
Recommendation 34 — Police Manual (Lead)
Recommendation 35 — Specialist Unit (Lead)
Recommendation 88 — Gloriavale (Support)

e Recommendation 112 — Public Campaign (Support)

e Recommendation 130 - Police Response to RCOI {Lead)

Private Bag 18041, Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6160, New Zealand +64 4 817 6809 | m.mitchell@ministers.govt.nz



e Recommendation 131 — Police Response to RCOI (Lead)

e Recommendation 133 — Annual Report on Implementation (Lead)
e Recommendation 134 — Annual Repart nn Implementation (Lcad)
® Recommendation 136 — Progress review in 2033 (Support).

Work Police already has underway

Police’s current focus to respond to the RCOI involves the following activities:

»

»

»

»

»

»

Supporting development of the national apology and preparing Police’s apology (rec 3)

Regular engagement with the Crown Response Unit and partner agencies to ensure a
coordinated response.

Responding to requests for information from the Crown Response Unit, partner d@gencies,
Ministers, the public, and media.

Responding to investigative demand.
Reviewing RCOI recommendations and deepening the understanding(of implications for Police.

Identifying and confirming the business-as-usual resources that wilkbe allocated to respond to
the RCOI.

Work Police can complete in the next 6-10 weeks before the apology date

Based on the earlier-stated assumptions, Police anticipates that by the apology date it will have:

»

»

»

»

»

»

»

Confirmed that Police’s Inquiry Support team (two constabulary staff who coordinate
responses to most external inquiries involvifig Police, including the Royal Commission into
COVID-19 Lessons Learned, supporting reqguests from the Criminal Cases Review Commission,
recommendations from the Poutasi Review of the Children’s System and work of the
Independent Children’s Monitar) will'be responsible for the Police response to the RCOl as a
whole.

Allocated specific business,owners and leads to each of the 13 Police-related RCOI
recommendations, soimplementation work can begin within business-as-usual capacity.

Continued to také all practical steps to ensure ongoing safety of children, young people, and
adults in care gt/ Gloriavale (rec 88)

Continued tg meet business-as-usual investigative demand and provide associated support
and assistance to survivors of abuse in care (rec 6)

Worked with the Crown Response Unit regarding agency and Police response to the RCOI in
order to progress recs 130 and 131.

Initially briefed all Police District Crime Managers on the RCOI findings and implications,
particularly regarding the potential for further investigative demand.

Provided context to all staff on the Police apology and provided a dedicated channel for
internal advice and guidance (likely the Inquiry Support function).



Work Police can meaningfully have underway before the apology date

Aside from the above, prior to the 12 November apology, Police does not expect to have any other
work meaningfully underway this calendar year given the complexity and scope of that work and
the constraint of operating within business-as-usual resources.

By 31 March 2025, however, Police expects individuals allocated to each of the recommendations
will have started initial thinking around plans or approaches for the following pieces of work; which,
if implemented as per the recommendations, appear to require significant organisational change
including development and design of training programmes:

»  Opening/re-opening investigations where torture may have occurred (rec 6)
»  Raising awareness of Police’s intent to investigate appropriate cases (rec 6)
»  Ongoing provision of support and assistance to survivors of abuse in care (rec 6)

»  Training and education of Police staff on:
= Torture (rec 6)
= RCOI findings (rec 33)
= Trauma-informed investigative and prosecution processes (re¢ 33)
= All forms of discrimination (rec 33)
= Engaging with neurodivergent people (rec 33)
= Human rights concepts including international obligations (rec 33)
= Prosecution guidelines once this work has been completed by the lead agency (rec 24)

»  Reviewing the many hundreds of Police Manual(chapters to ensure compliance with all RCOI-
related obligations (rec 34)

» A specialist unit to investigate and prosecute those responsible for historical or current abuse
in care (rec 35)

»  New information management reqdifements to facilitate the Police response to the RCOI,
including retention of records felated to abuse in care

»  New system enhancements to/ensure capture and back-capture of cases involving historical or
current abuse in care (including costs and implications) to support the RCOI response. This
includes possible ogtions to enable centralised visibility of the information received through
various commurication channels that may be used by survivors if there is an expectation that
Police will befrequired to report on volumes.

»  Input ifito'the recommended nationwide social and educational campaign to help identify and
respofid'to abuse and neglect if this work has commenced by the lead agency (rec 112)

»  Guidance on the management of Care Records — Disposal authority (rec 89 Redress
Recommendations outlined in He Purapura Ora, he Mara Tipu).

Next steps for Police

Without more detailed scoping work and analysis being completed, initial assumptions are that
completing all the above work in line with the recommendations and within business-as-usual
resources will be a three-to-five-year programme of work.

| anticipate continuing to receive updates from Police on RCOl-related work and will keep your Office
appraised of any key risks or concerns. My expectation is that | will receive a detailed briefing from



Police closer to the national apology outlining progress which has been made, and any risks or issues
with the Police response.

Parl Two: Department ot Corrections

Corrections is highly supportive of the work of the Royal Commission, and my officials are actively
involved in the Crown’s response. This includes providing information on how survivors in prison can
access support. In addition, Corrections ensured copies of the report were available in each prison.

I note that the Royal Commission’s Terms of Reference specifically excluded prisons and private
prisons as a state care setting. Accordingly, Corrections’ role in the Crown’s response to the Royal
Commission’s recommendations is aligned with not being defined as state care (or care agency)
within this context.

I am advised that Corrections is not identified as a lead agency to respond to any of the Royal
Commission’s recommendations, though there are a set of recommendations in which Corrections is
formally identified as a support agency for being:

»  legislative amendments to the Sentencing Act 2002[Recommendatiori 27 refers); and
»  records-initiatives, due to Corrections administrative responsibility for historical youth penal

institutions [Recommendations 81, 82 and 83 refer).

While Corrections does not have a lead role in delivering on récommendations by 12 November
2024, they will support the work of other agencies accordingly.

Corrections will also continue to support cross-agency work associated with the Crown’s response to
the Royal Commission, including redress redesign:

Please feel free to contact me with any questions or if further information is required at this stage.

Yours sincerely

. 4

Hon Mark Mitchell
Minister of Police



Hon Tama Potaka

Minister of Conservation

Minister for Maori Crown Relations: Te Arawhiti
Minister for Maori Development

Minister for Whanau Ora

Associate Minister of Housing

Hon Erica Stanford

Lead Coordination Minister for the Government's Response to the Royal Commission’s
Report into Historical Abuse in State Care and in the Care of Faith-based Institutions
Parliament Buildings

Wellington

Téna koe Erica

This letter sets out the actions | am taking in my portfolios to supportthe Crown response work
programme. The work of the Royal Commission of Inquiry(the- Inquiry) is of enormous
significance to my portfolio responsibilities because of the large.numbers of Maori who have
been impacted on through being removed from their whanau,and hapt over decades.

Maori Development and Whanau Ora

Within my Maori Development and Whanau Ora.perffolios, | have set two priorities for Te Puni
Kakiri that will support the provision of services,to' tamariki Maori and their whanau.

The first priority focuses on ensuring the\adequacy of the state sector’s services to and with
Maori, including an explicit focus ondmproving the availability of data and evidence to inform
needs-based targeting. The monitering function of Te Puni Kokiri will be a key mechanism for
ensuring agencies are “held to.aceount”, thus influencing the provision of services to whanau.
Te Puni Kakiri is currently working with other government agencies to identify key areas for
monitoring outcomes for Maori.

The second priority is to/ehable Whanau Ora as a public service model for improving outcomes
for New Zealanders'with distinct needs. The Whanau Ora model has the flexibility, through its
regional and local networks, to address areas of government concern and to target those
whanau whe have complex needs and are amongst the most vulnerable. A key element of
this work, therefore, is consideration of how Whanau Ora and Social Investment complement
one another:

Inyrelafion to the specific recommendations from the Royal Commission, Te Puni Kokiri will
support work on recommendations 114 and 115 (appendix 1). To support these
recommendations, Te Puni Kakiri is working closely with the Social Investment Agency to build
a stronger evidence base for Whanau Ora to support future social investment initiatives.

Recommendation 116 proposes that an independent entity is established with commissioning
and monitoring functions. The recommendation proposes that existing functions be transferred
to this entity - including preventative services from Whanau Ora commissioning entities. This
is a significant and potentially far-reaching recommendation. Te Puni K&kiri is working
alongside other Crown Response agencies to understand the implications of progressing this
recommendation.

Private Bag 18041, Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6160, New Zealand | +64 4 817 6811 | tpotaka@ministers.govtnz




As a Crown Response agency, Te Puni Kakiri can also support other recommendations as
needed, particularly where these concemn Maori wellbeing and development.

Maorl Crown Relalivns — Te Arawhitl

In my role as the Minister for Maori Crown Relations, | am conscious of the importance for the
Crown response to take into account the considerations and findings in relation to the Treaty
of Waitangi / Te Tiriti o Waitangi. Through the Maori Crown Relations: Te Arawhiti portfolio,
officials are available to provide guidance to ministries and agencies developing responses to
the Abuse in Care Royal Commission of Inquiry report: Whanaketia, particularly where there
are Treaty of Waitangi / Te Tiriti o Waitangi implications.

Lastly, while my officials can provide advice on matters relating to specific Treaty-/# Tiriti
recommendations and the United Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous.Peoples,
these matters should be managed by the Crown Response Unit, as these recommendations
encompass the entirety of the coordinated Crown Response.

| appreciate the opportunity to contribute to this kaupapa and | remain.committed to ensuring
that the voices and needs of Maori and all those impacted by abuse in state care are prioritised
in our collective efforts. | look forward to collaborating with you arid our Ministerial colleagues
to advance these recommendations in a manner that honours the'Stories of survivors and their
whanau, and leads to a system where tamariki and vulnerable adults can be safe and thrive.

Mauriora

Plerifct

Hon Tama Potaka

Minister for Maori Crown Relation§: Te Arawhiti
Minister for Maori Development

Minister for Whanau Ora




"SAIIEIU| UOHE}|IOBS Paljue) NEUBYAN PUE
NJayYM 1uIL BBN ‘BIO NBUBYAA UNm SUBI|v

"uoljepusWodal ay}
Jusws|dwi pue ssaippe 0} ajos Buipoddng

‘a1ed u| J09)6au pue asnge |eduo)siy

0} paInqUIu0d jey) S|apow paj-alels aul PIoAB pue ‘elQ NBUBYAA
pue san| poos) Buyqeus se yons ‘sayoeoidde psj-Ajunwiwuod
10 passludd-NBUBYM ‘JUBWISOAUI [BID0S ‘uolinjoAap Buipnjoul
‘Hoddns pue ales jo A1aAlap 8y} 0} sayoseosdde Arelodwajuod
poddns 0} d10Mm Ul }saAUl pue asiioud pinoys juswiuieaob ayy

Sil O3y

"S9WI00IN0 UMO Jiay] pes| pue ajedioied 0]
Djlewe) 8104819y} pue ‘neueym ajqeus pue
poddns 0} si sy} jo padse Juepodwi Aiaa v
‘se|jiunuoddo Buipuny pue BuluoISSILILLOD
0] yoeoudde pasjuad-neueym pue pasieso|
e Bupye) 0] 821M18S 21|QNd 8y} SSoIoe
saloualbe Juawuiaaog) spoddns yoiym
sayoeo.idde pasuss-neueym sabeinoous
Jey) swwelbouid yJom e sey UBoY lund o1

"uolepuUSWILLIOIaS By)
Juswis|dw pue ssaippe 0} 3jos Buipoddng

"Bunjew uoisioap ojul

saljiunwiwos Jo'Yyibuails ay) Buug o} pue ‘way) }osye Jey} suoisiosp
ul sjedioiped AlSan0ays a10W 0} NeuBYM 118y} pue a1ed ul sjnpe

pue a|doad BunoA ‘uaup|iyo 3|qeud o} saunpoddo Ayjuapl 0} 2ied

ul s)npe pue ‘sjdoad BUNOA. ‘uaip|iyd 10 a1ed sy} 0} pajelal sauyapinb
pue adnoeld |euoielsado.'syjuswysanul ‘Aoljod ‘uoie|siba) mainal 'q

Bupjew-uoisidap ojul S8ljuNwWWwod jo yjbualis ay)

Buuq o} pue ‘way) Joaye jey) suoisieap ul sjedioiued AjpARoaYs ajow
0} NBUBYM JI3Y} pue aJ1ed u) s)npe pue,sjdoad BunoA ‘uaipjiyo s|qeud
0} yJom aAne|siba| pue Aoijod usuna-esijuoud pue a)els|sooe ‘e

:pnoys Juswuianob ay|

Vil O3y

JUSWISA|OAUI LIDjOY IUnd 8]

uoRepLAWWO0d3l JO IX3]

# 99y

I XIAN3ddVv



Hon Judith Collins KC

Attorney General

Minister of Defence

Minister for Digitising Government

Minister Responsible for the GCSB

Minister Responsible for the NZSIS

Minister of Science, Innovation and Technology
Minister for Space

Hon Erica Stanford
Lead Coordination Minister for the Government’s Response to the Royal Commission’s Report
into Historical Abuse in State Care and in the Care of Faith-based Institutions

By email: E.Stanford@ministers.govt.nz

Dear Erica

THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE ABUSE INQUIRY RELEVANT-TO THE CROWN LAW OFFICE

As requested by the Prime Minister, | have listed in the attached table the
recommendations of the Abuse in Care Royal Commissien of Inquiry that relate to the
operations of the Crown Law Office. In addition,Ihave noted if those recommendations
have been implemented.

For completeness | note that many of the Iriquiry’s recommendations will require significant
policy work by relevant agencies. Crown'taw may contribute to this policy work, but it will
not be the lead agency.

Yours sincerely

Ko ace

Hon Judith-€ollins KC

Attorney-General

Private Bag 18041, Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6160, New Zealand | +64 4 817 6808 | j.collins@ministers.govt.nz



809vZT8

SILR 40 3duepIn3 ul a|gqex)iam Jou.s! 3| ‘me| S3ydiu uewny Jueaajal ||e
Juipn|zul ‘me| ay1 yim aocueldwad s103ndaso.ld poddns 03 payelp ale
SSUI[SPIND 3Y] "13W S| UOLBPUBWWOIS. 3Y] JO ddueISQNns By :(e)zz# -
UOJEPUBILIOIAY YIBD JO Joadsal
Ul 4IMO||0} 3Y} BJ0U | "d|E}JOM PRJSQISUOD J0U S| S10308} 10 SJuawalinbal
2y123ds 3no 3ulBuis ‘sspuade Juindasaud ojgqnd |e 03 SuiAjdde |00}
uonnoasoud |esauad e Jo 1Xa1U0D Y] Ul ASNEIIGU0-BUIyelp 03 uae} yoeoldde
9L} 01 J3Y3}I3 ANp s! Syl 12w Ajjoym 10U aJe SUOLEPUSLWIWO0IDL 3Y) dIAYM
“JEW S| SUJBOUOD S,U0ISSILWO) |eAOY BY3 JO 3DUBISENS,3Y] PUB MBINRJ 3Y)
Ul passalppe uaaq aAeYy UOISSILUWOD) |eAOY ay3 Aq apEUM SUOLEPUSLLWIONIAL
9y} JO IS0\ "W3sAs aosnl |eulisd ayl 3dURLISAXD JO U] yiom
oym scnoJd pue ajdoad Auew padeSua uonelnsuod 4o ssa20id aalsuaIXe By |
"TZ0Z Ul PR2UBWIWOD SEM YIIYM S3UIIBPING UOINIBSO0.d S,|eJaUan-403121|0S
343 JO M3IASJ BALIURISNS pue DAISUIXD Ue 333|dwod 0] Inoge S| MeUMOo.L)

Med u] ‘paidaddy

1Y} ‘uolynNIaso.d 10} UOLIEIBPISUDD
1sa43jul 21ignd e se ‘apnppu| (2
‘SeIq UMO J1ay3 1o}
|enuajod ay3 as51u8odal 3dUPIND
s,Jueureidwod e jo Ayl|iqIpaJd
9y} U0 SJuUaWSSasse Supjew
asoy3 1eyl Juawalinbas e spnpau; (q
‘'suopesi|jqo
me| |euoneusalul pue sysu
uewiny JueAd|a Y1IM JUd3sIsuod
21e suo|SI23p uolrnaasousd
1eyl uswasinbal e apnpu| (e
101 saul|apIng uoirnaasold Jo ayns ay3
puswe p|noys |elauan-101d1|0S Y| ZZ#

NYI Y3 ulyam sdiysuone(a.s 3ulsixa eIA 3q 0} S| SIOAIAINS Yum juswadesu]
"PIpPUBWILIOIA SE ‘SIOAIAINS Y1IM UOLIR}NSUOD Ul ‘207 19QWIAON ZT

uc A8ojode 2|qnd s, J31sIUIlA Bwild 3Y3 40 A1aaljap ayl Suimol|os ASojode

pue Juswagdpajmoude oljgnd e J3AISp pue aiedasd ||Im |BIBUSD-103191|0S 3y |

pa13|dwo)
3q 03} ‘pa1daday|

‘|e13U39-401121|0S

ay) 8uipnjoul ‘siapea)| 40123s 21|1qnd

Aq syiomiau poddns pue neueym Jiay3
‘SIOAIAINS 0] Bpew aq p|noys a3e1s ay) Jo
3Je2 ay3 u1 129|33u pue asnqge |eaLI0)sIY 1o}
sa180|0de pue sjuawSpajmoudde d|qnd €4

‘M0|3q 3|qe] ,SUoLePUIWIWIOI3I 1J0d3l SSAIPaY, 935

"Jodal siyl u) apew

suoQjepuawwodal Jaylny Aue o3 393[qns
‘dnoa3 udisap ay3 Jo suoepPUIWW0IA
941 yum 13413503 ‘ssaipas uo podal
w1 s,Alinbu) ay3 ul suonepusWWO0IAI
6943 JUswa|dw| pjnoys Jusawuianos
ay3‘Aluoud ajeipawiwi) ue sy T#

uawwo)

5n3ojs|

SUOLDPU3WIWI0I34 340034 [DUI




809pZ18

'SS3J1SIP {RIUBW

1S3UI[PPING JUBA|DJ Ul SS3JISIP |BJUDW 9oualadxe Jo/pue pa|qesip ‘jeaq ale
8upuauadxa asoyl 4o ajdoad pajqesip Suinjoaul sased yieosdde 03 moy Jo oym sjenpiaipul 8uiajonul sased yoeoudde
suonesapiIsuod sy1dads pajeldajul aAey am UaAamoH -1do] Siy3 uo asuepingd 01 MOy U0 s103nd23soud 01 saullapind

‘auo|e-puels Y1oads ou s 313y ‘1PUWkA(eled s uorepuawWwodal siyy | 1ed ul ‘pa1daddy]  2yi10ads anssI PINOYS |eIUID-101I1|0S EZ#

‘S9IUBISWNIJID UIR)IDI U] SUOISIDAP uolndasold Mainl Aew sajouade

dunnaasoud jeyy asiudodas Ayl pue ‘91n23seld-0) J0U UOoISIIBP

e Jo} uonjeue|dxa Jea|d e J0j Juawalinbal jesauald-e shey 1aAamoy

‘op Aoy "ssa@do0.ud mainal e alinbau Ajssaidxa youop’saulaping

BYl 8 PUE / SHEd Ul S32Ua}J0 J3Y10 ||e JO 103dsal b} ‘usie|oin

|[enxas UIA|OAUI SBSED U] SUOISIIAP SUIMBIARI 10) $S320.d pajielap e
apiaoad sauijaping ay] ‘19w Ajjerued s1 uonepuswwodal siy) :(d)zze, -

‘S9SBD IIUI|OIA [BNXaS JO) S2UBpPINS pajueyus “((1n) = (1) syurod
pue p3jielap Ajjedadsa papirosd aney apn ‘yoeoidde pawlojul ul uopepUIWIWO0I3I JO [1e1aq)
ewneJ} e Sundope Suipnoul ‘sjueurejdwod yym uidedus Joy 2ouoesd *93n2aso.ad 03 Jou apew uaaq
159q 1IN0 195 Saul|PpINg ay| 19w S| uoyepusawwodal siyl :(p)zes - Sey uoIs|dap € 3JaYM oY SaWI)
"JUBA3|3J 3q ||IM WY} 3y3 Jo 8 10 / slied Japun Bulj|ey
0} Pasnes wuey 3y)} pue 34ed 3e1S Ul WLUIIA e Jo Ajjigesauna ay | s92uao a83||e oym sjueuie|dwod
‘SUIPUAYO JO 1XSJUOI JUBAR|DJ BY] JO uoLeIBpISU0D alinbaa saulRpInd 10} ss9204d M3|ABI B ysijgelsy (o
3y1 s30adsns pue SWNHIIA Y104 104 JUNOIIE 03Ul UdYE] 3q p|noys ‘y3jeay |eusw Jo
S32URISWNDIID SWIDIA MOY Jnoge aduepind [esauad sapiaoad 31 pealsu| [ea1sAyd s ssauum e uo uonnaasoud
‘uondasoud Jo Jnoaey ul sySiam a.4ed 21e31s ul wJey jeyl 31dxa jou S| 40 109449 AJ9yj1] 8y1 Buissasse uaym
1591 3sa491ul 2lqnd 3y 1ow Ajjerued S| uoyepuswiwodal siyl (d)zzg - Suipn)aul ‘suolsidap uonnaasosd
'SJUBLISSISSE uo syueuie|dwod Yy}m (3 nsuod
Aljiq1p®aJa ul seiq o ysi4 8y} asiu8odau pue seiq 401ndasoid aeyiaiow ‘st 1eyy) Ajlendosdde
SS9Jppe saul|apind ay| ‘j|aw S| uoyepuawwodal 3yl (q)zzE - 98e8U9 01 suopedijqo uayiduains (p
‘'suoyesi|go me| |euoneulalul JUBAI|aJ Jaylo pue suopedi|qo syysu ‘a4ed u uossad e

uewny |euoLeulalul s,puejeaz maN yym aoueldwod Ayioads oy adAy jsuieSe paIWiod SEM 32UdJJ0 aY)




\m\@

%

809718

‘'s8uipaadoud Jueasjau ui juedyl, wa.x Y3 — umoJ) 3yl Sunuasaidal
SI9AME| 3Y1 10U — UMOJID Y3 SI 3| "JUSWUIBA 2102 Adrjod juesyiusis
uo Jua8uluod S| | se 3dels siy3 e paydande aq “_& uoLePUAWIWOIAI SIY |

paidasoe joN

‘sanjeA uouesal| |IAD S,|eJausn
-Asuiony ay3 soejdad 03 Adjjod juesyl)
|9pow e dn meup pjnoys umou) 3y Z8#

Smo3s

SuoRPPUAWIWIO0IAL 1i0d3s $S21poy

C\ m SJUBWIWO)

/)

"0
¢
e
¢

[

'S$30P } ¥JOM 3Y3 4O suoisuawip sy uewny 3uisiudodas pue suois|dap
paseiqun 3upjew ‘sajualiadxa pue spunos8ydeq asianlp wody ajdoad yum
3ulesp ‘uoueulwIdSIp Ul JE1S SU JO UoLeINPa 3yl 0] JUBAS|3J S| UOISN|IUI

pu2 A}ISI2AIP UO }JOM S 1nq sjulejdwod 93e81ISIAUI 10U SI0P MET UMOID)

"}Jed uf 19W S| UoLBPUBWIWIOIAY SIY )

o

O

RS

Hed uj ‘pardandy

's1d@2u0d sysu uewny (@
9|doad
juadianipoinau yum Suidedus (p
uoLBUIWIIISIP JO Swioy e (2
$3ssa%0.d uopnaasoud
pue aAnedissAul pawiojul-ewnesn (q
s8uipuy s,Azinbuj ayy (e
U0 suadxa Ja11ew 123[gns JUBADJA. WO
Suiuiesy pue uoyeanpa an1R2a1 sadpnl pue
‘s1aAme| ‘s101ndas0.4d ‘siojednsanul 1eyl
24nsua p|noys sa|poq |euo|ssajoid |eda|
JUBA3|3J 1310 pue A13120§ MeT pue|eaz
33 ‘90440 MET UMOID 3Y) ‘331|od ZN
S (11PN JO 31N1LsSU| EMEYEYMIE)

'saul|aseq unsixa ulyum ySnoy) ‘saul@ping uoyndasold mau ayy uo
meT umou) Aq pa1onpuoad aq 01 S| Sulules] 1ey] Ul 19W S| UOLEPUIWILIOIA SIY]

pale|dwod
9q 03 ‘pa1d322y)|

JeJny 31 ‘dasnr Jo ANSIUIN BYL E€#
o "saul|aping |

) 0 sJ03n2asoud 104 Sujuien

ul 1S9AUl v@m jJuawuianos ay] yz#

s
S
2

4



@\ *3WaYIs Y3 J0 SNOI Y3 yanosyy

0] J2Y1ayMm ‘swiejd aJed Ul ashqe
||e 01 8djpuodsau ui Adijod Juesyl| |apow
3Y3 Yyum AjJuaisisuod 10e pjnoys ‘siaAme|

‘3A0Qe 33§ JIEITH ;%kﬁ_m ‘salouase alels €84

B4
OmuO
4
(04




Hon Louise Upston

Minister for the Community and Voluntary Sector
Minister for Disability Issues

Minister for Social Development and Employment
Minister for Child Poverty Reduction

Hon Erica Stanford
Lead Coordination Minister for the Government’s Response to the Royal
Commission’s Report into Historical Abuse in State Care and in the Care of Faith-

based Institution
E.Stanford@ministers.govt.nz

Dear Erica

At the meeting of the Crown Response to the Abuse in Care Inguify Ministerial
Group on 26 August 2024, you asked for an indication of the/Status of actions
that would help progress the recommendations of the final'report of the Royal
Commission into Abuse in Care (Whanaketia).

This letter sets out actions in relation to the Disability.Issues portfolio that can
be completed or agreed and significantly underway by the public apology event
on 12 November 2024. This will be during a busy ‘period of organisational and
functional change for the Ministry of Disabled.People - Whaikaha (MDP) and
Disability Support Services (DSS) as described later.

Disabled people need to be central to the cross-government response

Deaf and disabled people, tangatda.whaikaha Maori and Pacific disabled people
(disabled people) have been-significantly over-represented in care, and as
survivors of abuse in care. It.is important that the Government takes the
necessary time to effectively engage disabled people in its response.

I therefore see a significant opportunity for my Disability Issues portfolio to
contribute to many-of the recommendations in Whanaketia, particularly
through:

e Cross-government disability system leadership, stewardship,
engagement, policy development and information sharing; and

4 “Improvements to the quality of Disability Support Services (DSS),
which will shortly transfer to the Ministry of Social Development (MSD),
including strengthened safeguarding, better management of
complaints, improved access to people’s records, and improved critical
incident investigations, data and monitoring.

e Supporting other agencies to establish effective approaches that allow
for the longer time frames often required when engaging with disabled
people.

Private Bag 18041, Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6160, New Zealand | +64 4817 6807 | lupston@ministers.govt.nz



Changes for DSS and MDP

The period leading up to the public apology will be a busy time for the MDP and
MSD fallowing the recent Cabinet decision to transfer rasponsibility for DSS Lo
MSD and establish MDP as a stand-alone Government department.

I have made it clear to officials that the Crown response to Whanaketia is a high
priority, and that I expect that all relevant contributions will be factored into the
work of both agencies over this period, and advanced wherever possible.

Recommendations that can be completed by 12 November

Leading up to 12 November, I see the Disability Issues portfolio mainly
contributing to recommendations led by other agencies, for example with'the
Ministry of Justice on changes to the Crimes Act to specifically include.disabled
people in care in the definition of a vulnerable person (recommendation 26).

I note recommendation 54 includes designating a safeguarding and I will ask
MSD to ensure a lead is nominated for DSS.

Recommendations I can commit to or have meaningfully underway by
12 November

Initial dissemination of the findings and recommendations of Whanaketia to
disability networks and community has been(completed (recommendation 113).
However, disability groups and networks aretindicating that many in the
disability community are finding it hard(toyaccess and understand a report of the
size and complexity of Whanaketia.

MDP will work with disabled peoples’ organisations and other groups to increase
the awareness of and accessto'rélevant parts of the report in alternate formats
(Braille, Easy Read, NZ Sign‘tanguage, large print, captioning etc), building on

the work of the Royal Comimission and the Crown Response Unit (CRU).

Work underway that will contribute to relevant recommendations

The 38 Care Safety recommendations are a significant focus for the MDP,
particularly_in relation to DSS, and align strongly with work already underway to
improve the quality of DSS and safeguarding (particularly recommendations 50-
56).

New\safeguarding measures are being established, such as an independent peer
monitoring service for disabled people in residential care, which will be
contracted this month.

I plan to make further decisions about the quality framework for DSS services
after the independent review recommendations have been implemented. This
will provide an opportunity to align this work with the Royal Commission
recommendations.

The MDP participates in the redress design workstream of the CRU. The MDP will
work with the Ministry of Health and MSD to develop a position on redress



relating to DSS including claims and payment, as this was not considered in the
establishment of the MDP in 2022. Any management of DSS-related claims that
is the responsibility of MSD following this, will be in the context of the wider
framework for redress adopted by Government.

Considerations for the medium-term response

As you know, the Government will need to give careful thought to some of the
Royal Commission’s recommendations, particularly in relation to proposals such
as a Care Safety Act, National Care Safety Strategy, and commissioning agency,

As disabled children and adults are a large proportion of the people in all care
settings, the MDP could be well placed to take a leading role in the crosss
government aspects of the care safety work, drawing on its extensive disability
community networks for engagement. This work could do a lot to improve
quality of life for some of the most vulnerable disabled aduits ang-ghildren. This
includes finding opportunities to draw on the Enabling Good Lives vision and
principles where appropriate (see recommendations 15, 39, 115 for example).

The MDP, working with other agencies, could also lead 6r'support social and
educational campaigns to help recognise and respondi\torabuse and neglect,
attitudes and beliefs contributing to harmful and discriminatory experiences in
care, public awareness campaigns related to_inclusion and valuing diversity, and
promoting supported decision making (for example recommendations 111, 112,
114).

The MDP could support the Ministry of Justice review of the overarching human
rights framework and lead on any.disability rights improvements that the review
identifies (recommendation 119):

In conclusion

My key focus to the end of the year is to stabilise the disability support system
and implement the re¢ommendations of the Independent Review into DSS.
However, I am committed to the Crown response to the Royal Commission’s
report through-the Disability Issues portfolio. The recommendations and findings
of the Royal\Cémmission have significant implications for the disability support
system adross government. We need to take time to consider these and how to
implement them in a way that provides the greatest improvement to services
and. 6utcomes for disabled people.

Sincerely

Hon Louise Udston
Minister for Di§ability Issues



" Hon Louise Upston SREONERRRE

Minister for the Community and Voluntary Sector
Minister for Disability Issues

Minister for Social Development and Employment
Minister for Child Poverty Reduction

29 August 2024

Hon Erica Stanford

Lead Coordination Minister

Crown Response to the Abuse in Care Inquiry

Dear Minister

Ministry of Social Development contribution to the Crown Response
short, medium- and long-term work programme

Thank you for your ongoing leadership of the Crown Responsée Ministerial Group.
The Crown’s response to the report, findings and recommendations of the Royal

Commission of Inquiry into Abuse in Care (the Royal Commission) will require an
all-of-government approach.

I have received advice from my officials at the Mipistry of Social Development
(MSD) who have identified areas of relevance, in(rmy portfolio. In this letter, I
have outlined the work that MSD can contribute to the Crown response in the
short-term, medium-term and long-term.

You will receive a separate letter with advice from Whaikaha officials, outlining
the contribution I will make through my Disability Issues portfolio. Disability
Support Services (DSS), and policy“and quality assurance functions related to
DSS services and other supportifig functions, which currently sit within
Whaikaha, will move to MSDyin the coming months. My officials will work
through what this means forany actions relevant to the Crown response work.

Short-term deliverables

In advance of the planned public apology in November, I have asked my officials
to progress work on:

Strengthening oversight of the Oranga Tamariki System

Cabinet Ras recently agreed to policy decisions that will make structural changes
to the gavernance of the Independent Children’s Monitor (the Monitor) and the
Children and Young People’s Commission (the Commission) through
afmendments to the Oversight of Oranga Tamariki System Act 2022 (Oversight
Act) and the Children and Young People’s Commission Act 2022 (Commission
Act) respectively.

In November, I will be introducing legislation to enact upcoming changes to
oversight of the Oranga Tamariki system to:

Private Bag 18041, Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6160, New Zealand | +64 4 817 6807 l.upston@ministers.govt.nz



IN-CONFIDENCE

o increase the independence of the monitor by transforming it from a
departmental agency hosted by ERO to an Independent Crown
Entity (TCF) with a small part time hoard

o give more visibility to the role of Children's Commissioner by
reverting to a single Commissioner by disestablishing the Board but
maintaining ICE status

This legislation will take effect on 1 July 2025.

I have spoken with MSD officials, and they consider that proposed legislative
changes to the Commission and the Monitor, alongside a review of the relevant
legislation, will align with some of the Royal Commission's recommendations
(recommendation 85 - 87), and will not prevent any future responses to.other
recommendations on oversight arrangements (such as recommendation 41 to
establish a new Care Safe Agency that involves monitoring, complaints, and
registration functions).

Funding a range of relevant support and prevention initiatives

MSD already funds a range of prevention initiatives and services for people who
use or are impacted by family violence or sexual vielence (FVSV).

MSD also contracts with specialist providers who'work with victims/survivors of
sexual violence, including Sexual Violence Crisis Support services and peer
support services for Male Survivors of Sexual-Abuse. In addition, MSD also
contracts providers who support adults'with Concerning Sexual Ideation or
Harmful Sexual Behaviour. These services are supported through MSD’s FVSV
help portal (help seeking websites),

There is an opportunity to targét MSD’s existing prevention and early
intervention initiatives for 2024/25 to encourage help-seeking behaviour in line
with the Crown'’s response and apology. This may further increase demand for
FVSV services whicheis likely to increase regardless surrounding the public

apology.

I have been adyised by officials that a proposed October Baseline Update carry
forward of funding, if approved, could be used to support targeted prevention
activity for 2024/25 (one year only). I can advise in the coming months the
scale.and approach this could take.

A.consequence of raising awareness is that more people may seek help, which
could increase demand for services across MSD’s FVSV response services. This is
most relevant for recommendation 122 seeking adequate prevention
programmes, specialist support and online information for people at risk of
perpetrating abuse or neglect. Not all initiatives in scope of these
recommendations sit within MSD.

Providing redress to survivors of abuse in care



IN-CONFIDENCE

MSD continues to provide redress for survivors and will continue to have an
important role in the ongoing redress design work. There are an additional 95
recommendations, of which the Crown is considering as part of the parallel
redress design work, these recommendations are included by reference in the
final report’s first recommendation,

Strengthening accreditation

Te Kahui Kahui works on behalf of six government agencies to accredit or
approve social service providers against the Social Sector Accreditation
Standards. A number of the Standards reflect aspects of recommendations 56¢
64 in the Royal Commission report.

Te Kahui Kahu is currently improving the visibility of requirements for Child
Protection Policies, safety checking and vetting of people who work with or care
for children and vulnerable people. This work is supported by the tedevelopment
of guidance and tools for providers that will enable them to comply with these

requirements.
In addition, Te Kahui Kahu assessors are completing additional training to
strengthen their assessment practice. Te Kahui Kahu-is.also exploring certified

child protection training for assessors to help themrbrecognise and respond when
visits to providers raise concerns about the saféty of children and vulnerable

people.

Medium-term deliverables

In the medium term, I have asked my(officials to progress work on:
Managing the risk of harm from, social service workers

MSD policy is leading scoping work to explore the mechanisms in place to
support safety in the delivery of social services.

I will be receiving advice shortly on existing mechanisms in place to manage the
risk of harm from.sotial service workers. I consider that this work could
contribute to the.Grown'’s response to the Royal Commission’s findings about
care safety, @nd-to parts of some recommendations (for example,
recommengdaftions 57-64).

Reviewing how redress payments are considered for MSD benefits,
payments and welfare services

I have received advice on how redress payments are considered as income or
¢ash assets for any benefits, payments, or welfare services provided through
MSD, including Work and Income and social housing.

I consider that current legislation is sufficient for the exemption of most redress
payments as income and cash assets for MSD administered assistance. This
work will not be complete in time for the proposed November omnibus bill as
there are important equity, legislative and policy issues to consider. I have
asked my officials to explore how redress payments are treated for



IN-CONFIDENCE

supplementary and hardship assistance as part of the work already underway to
redesign redress.

Long-tarm deliverables

There are, of course, a range of other recommendations that MSD has an
interest in, noting the establishment of these recommendations will require a
complete and thorough analysis and will likely be progressed in the longer-term.
Many of these require a multi-agency approach.

Strengthening care safety

I have asked my officials to continue to work closely with the Crown Respanse
Unit as they undertake analysis of the system shifts that the Royal Commission
recommends and the relevant actions to achieve these. For example, the
consideration of whether a Care Safe Agency should be established\and what its
functions should be (recommendation 41).

I understand that the Public Service Commission has suggested that this
consideration of the benefits and risks of a Care Safe Agency could take place in
early 2025. Preparatory work to understand existing/furctions, gaps and
duplications will require multiple agencies to contribute.

I remain committed to supporting the Crown’s response to the Royal
Commission’s report, findings and recommeéndations and note that much of the
long-term work is long term because it rélates to system shifts and requires
input from multiple agencies. I understand that there is an expectation that
Crown Response Unit will continue/te work with agencies to incorporate their
input and expertise into advice @nd support good agency consultation processes.
I have asked my officials to continue to work closely with the Crown Response
Unit and other agencies.

Sincerely

Hon Louise Upston
Minister for Social Development and Employment



" Hon Dr Shane Reti

Minister of Health
Minister for Pacific Peoples

12 SEP 2024

Hon Erica Stanford
Lead Coordination Minister for the Government’s Response to the Royal Commission’s
Report into Historical Abuse in State Care and in the Care of Faith-based Institutions

e.stanford@ministers.govt.nz

Dear Erica

Royal Commission of Inquiry into Historical Abuse in State Care-and in the Care of
Faith-based Institutions

As Minister of Health, | am pleased to advise you that the Ministry of Health and Health New
Zealand have significant work underway to support the response to the recommendations of
the final report of the Royal Commission of Inquiry into Histerical Abuse in State Care and in
the Care of Faith-based Institutions (the Royal Commission), Whanaketia - through pain and
frauma, from darkness to light (Whanaketia).

| can assure you that | am committed to leading the health system’s response to the
recommendations of Whanaketia. Priority'of the response to Whanaketia to-date has been
on redress and mental health, howevér, there are recommendations that address the wider
health system and opportunities far further work. Some work was complete when the final
report was presented to Parliamfienton 24 July 2024, while other work is still underway.

This letter outlines health, portfolio-specific responses to the recommendations and should
be read with the letter-provided to you by Hon Matt Doocey, which details health actions that
sit in his Minister for. Mental Health portfolio, specifically:

a. Lake Alice redress — Aligned with recommendation 6 and 7

b. Rédfess design and development — Aligned with multiple recommendations

o Nga Paerewa Health and Disability Standards - Contributes to the response of
recommendation 39

d. Protection measures against pain compliance and restraint - Aligned with
Recommendation 72

e. Mental Health Infrastructure Programme — Aligned with recommendations 73

f. Measures to minimise and eliminate the use of seclusion - Aligned with
Recommendation 74

g. Mental Health Bill — Aligned with multiple recommendations

Private Bag 18041, Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6160, New Zealand | +64 48176803 | s.reti@ministers.govt.nz



Additionally, while focus of the recommendations of Whanaketia are mainly on past
treatment in State care, including mental health and disability and faith-based settings, the
nature of the recommendations focused on preventing abuse and neglect could well be
Applier to broader health and dioability care settings, whicl were 1ol part of the scope ot the
Royal Commission, such as aged care and compulsory substance addiction facilities.

Whanaketia has placed clear responsibility on the Government and the health system to put
an end to the environments and systems that enabled abuse to occur in State care. |
recognise that in my role, as the Minister of Health, | have a responsibility to ensure that the
health system addresses these environments and systems so that the abuse brought to light
by the Royal Commission will cease in the future.

I look forward to working with you as this important work is continued, and | am cofamiitted to
supporting the Minister for Mental Health to progress recommendations related'to his
portfolio to ensure that the whole health system responds appropriately to Whanaketia.

Yours sincerely

.

Hon Dr Shane Reti
Minister of Health



Appendix — Health Portfolio

The Ministry of Health (the Ministry) and Health New Zealand (Health NZ) have significant
work underway to support the response to the 138 recommendations of the final report of the
Royal Commission of Inquiry into Historical Abuse in State Care and in the Care of Faith-
based Institutions (the Royal Commission), Whanaketia - through pain and trauma, from
darkness to light (Whanaketia).

Work that is already completed

1. Ngé Paerewa Health and Disability Standards - Contributes to the response of
recommendation 39

As noted in the Minister for Mental Health’s letter of 9 September 2024 to you, Nga.Paerewa
Health and Disability Standards (the standards) came into effect on 28 February.2022.
These updated standards provide the foundation for describing best practiceand fostering
continuous improvement in the quality of health and disability services.The-standards set
out the rights of people and ensures service providers know their responsibilities for safe
outcomes. Providers of are required to comply with the standards. The standards aim to
empower people to make decisions about their own care and support and be active
participants in the service to achieve their goals, with a stronger focus on outcomes for

people receiving support.
Work that is underway and expected to be completed in 12 months or less

2. Public acknowledgment and apologyte survivors, whanau and support networks by
public sector leaders - Contributes to'recommendation 3b

Following the Prime Minister's planned public apology on 12 November 2024, the Director-
General of Health on behalf of the\Ministry of Health (and other named public sector entities
and leaders) will also deliver an.apology to abuse in care survivors. The Crown Response
Unit is working with public sector agencies to ensure consistency and alignment with that
apology and that it meets'the intent of this recommendation.

3. Changes in/workforce regulatory settings - Aligned with recommendation 57

The Ministryjislooking at options to improve the regulatory settings for New Zealand's health
workforce, in¢luding by making changes to the current Health Practitioners Competence
Assurance Act 2003. This includes consideration of an alternative form of regulation that
would-be suitable for lower risk services, such as professions that are currently self-

regulated or unregulated.

The Ministry is considering levels of regulation that would avoid imposing unnecessary
regulatory and financial burden, while ensuring sufficient oversight, quality and safety.
Consideration of this model is still in its early stages, and further analysis and consultation is
required before any decisions are made on whether it is suitable to progress. As care
workforces cover both health and social services, the Ministry is working closely with the
Ministry of Social Development in this area.



Further work in the next 12 months and beyond

I recognise that there is pressure from survivors and the public to commit to a fast, and
fulsome response to Whanaketia. | am eager to meet these expectations and ensure that tho
heaith agencies are moving forward to respond to the recommendations.

I am advised by the Ministry and Health NZ that more time is needed to consider the funding
and resourcing that may be required for any future work to respond to the recommendations
in Whanaketia. There are work programmes and measures already in place in the Ministry
and Health NZ that may partially respond to some of the health-specific recommendations 6f
Whanaketia. However, the extent to which these activities address the recommendations is
unknown at this time and will need to be considered in upcoming discussions between the
Ministry and Health NZ.

As you will know, the Crown Response Unit has completed an initial high-level triage of the
recommendations from the final report and opportunities to progress responses to
recommendations that can be readily agreed by Cabinet in mid-September 2024. This will
provide the direction for recommendations for early progression and-td.commission work on
recommendations which may be more complex and far-reaching= Seme recommendations
will require input from health as a key stakeholder in the care/system, and | expect that the
Ministry and Health NZ will support this work.

Once formal decisions are made for progressing recommendations, officials will update me
on the actions that can be taken to progress the h&aith-specific recommendations. |
anticipate that the new Crown Response Office‘within the Public Service Commission will
drive action, given its mandate to drive action@agross government and ensuring this work is
prioritised.



Office of Hon Erica Stanford

Minister of Education

Minister of Immigration

Lead Coordination Minister for the Government’s Response
to the Royal Commission’s Report into Historical Abuse in
State Care and in the Care of Faith-based Institutions

Hon Erica Stanford

Lead Coordination Minister for the Government’s Response to the Royal Commission of
Inquiry’s Report into Historical Abuse in State Care and in the Care of Faith-Based
Institutions

E.Stanford@ministers.govt.nz

Téna koe,

This letter provides information on the Ministry of Education’s (the Ministry) ontribation
towards supporting the recommendations made as part of the Royal Commission of Inquiry
into Historical Abuse in State Care and in the care of Faith-Based Institutions (RCOI).

The scope of the Ministry’s actions outlined below focus on existing‘education settings and
Ministry actions that align with the intent of several of the RCOlLrecommendations. This
includes what can be accelerated or actioned in the coming weeks leading to the public
apology event on 12 November 2024. Some recommendations have aiready been
addressed or are reflected under current settings, while work is underway on other
recommendations.

Education has a role to play in minimising harm in institutional environments and
practices

The Ministry operates a number of education residential care facilities, including Residential
Specialist Schools (RSS), which many of the recommendations made by the RCOI apply to.
These RSS and education residential care facilities provide education to learners. These
include:

- Westbridge Residential School, based in Auckland,

- Hallswell Resjdential College, based in Christchurch,

- Salisbury School, based in Nelson,

- There isconé-national school for deaf and hard of hearing students, Ko Taku Reo,
which.offers residential services in Auckland and Christchurch as well as day school
provision, satellite classes and outreach services for students enrolled in local
schools throughout the country, and

-« “The national school for Blind and Low Vision students (BLENNZ) also offers
residential services in Auckland.

Fhave asked the Education Review Office to review these schools every year and have
requested information from the Ministry on opportunities to improve monitoring of RSS and
hostels. In the longer-term, | have made a commitment to close RSS and other educational
residential care facilities.

Private Bag 18041, Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6160, New Zealand | +64 4 8176805 | e.stanford@ministers.govi.nz



RCOI recommendations and alignment of Ministry settings and actions

Recommendation Progress Comments
65 — Process to The Ministry has clear policies and protections
respand tn anmplnints, in place for whislUebluwers and those making
or to disclosures of good faith notifications. These respond to part
abuse and neglect ‘e’ of this recommendation, which states the
need for clear protections in place for
Specifically, part e. whistleblowers and those making good faith
there are clear notifications. Protections include confidentiality;
protections in place for immunity from civil, criminal, or
whistleblowers and Complete disciplinary proceedings in relation to making
those making good the protected disclosure; and protection from
faith notifications on employer, or any other organisation;
retaliating against a discloser or victimising
them because they have made the disclosure.
These protections are detailed on the
Ministry’s staff intranet, including\further
guidance for when we rec€ive a protected
disclosure.
72 — Take steps to ban The Ministry’s physicalrestraint legislation,
pain compliance rules, and guidelings fulfil these
techniques recommendations., The Education and Training
Act 2020 doeS not’'permit the use of pain
compliancestechniques or seclusion in schools.
Seclusion is.banned under section 98 of the
Education and Training Act 2020. Under Section
99;'physical restraint can only be used when it is
necessary to prevent imminent harm, and it
Compiete must be “reasonable and proportionate in the
circumstances”. The Guidelines clarify that this
means only applying as much force as
necessary, for the minimum time necessary,
and that restraints that involve “immobilising
through pressure points and pain holds” are
unsafe, cause harm and must never be used.
The Education (Physical Restraint) Rules 2023,
and the guidelines help explain these rules.
73 — Ensure adequate Physical restraint can only be used when
frameworks to govern specific conditions are met and there is
the e of restrictivg reasonable belief that there is no other option.
practices . .
Complete Schools must report all physical restraint
incidents. The Ministry also monitors the
notifications of physical restraint and works with
schools to look at ways to minimise the use of
physical restraint.
74— Prioritise and Current education settings are consistent with
accelerate work to this recommendation. Seclusion is banned in
minimise and eliminate schools, with regional offices investigating any
solitary confinement reports of suspected use of seclusion in
schools.
Underway

School Boards must complete assurance
statements for ERO that confirm seclusion is not
used in the school. In addition to this ERO has
self-audit checklists for schools that refer to
seclusion being prohibited.




| have asked the Ministry to reconfirm policies
and procedures for RSS to ensure compliance
with this recommendation

58 — Pre-employment
screening and vetting,
including considering a
barring regime

Underway

The Ministry is undertaking work with partner
agencies to improve safety checking under
existing settings. This work is under the
Children’s Act 2014, which the Ministry jointly
administers with Oranga Tamariki, which means
that it only covers the safety checking of
children’s workers, not workers in other parts of
the care system. Current cross-agency work to
improve child protection could be leveraged to
respond to recommendations relating to
screening and vetting.

70 — Prioritise and
accelerate work to
close care and
protection residences,
and

71 - Models of care
that do not perpetuate
institutional
environments

Underway

Although recommendation 70 largely applies to
Oranga Tamariki and its Care and Protection
residences, Education also operates_a‘number
of residential care facilities, including RSS, that
this recommendation applies to.;\Education will
have a role to play in miniising institutional
environments and pracfices:

| have made a commitment to close RSS and
education residential care facilities. In the
interim, | hayeasked officials for advice on
opportunities to improve monitoring of RSS and
hostels

72 — Take steps to ban
pain compliance
techniques & 73:
Ensure adequate
frameworks to govern
the use of restrictive
practices

Underway

Further resources are currently being developed
tosupport staff training in identifying stress
triggers, understanding unmet needs, and
preventing, minimising, and responding to
student distress. This is to ensure compliance
with the rules. These resources will be able to
be used as a group or individually depending on
what schools opt to do. The Ministry aims to
send out the resources for feedback to key
stakeholders in mid-September, with the
resources online by 30 November.

88 — the Government
should take all
practicable steps to
ensure the ongoing
safety of children,
young people, and
adults in care at
Gloriavale

Underway

Actions responding to this recommendation are
underway in education settings within the
Gloriavale Community. Following the 2023 ERO
special review of Gloriavale Chistian School, the
Ministry meets monthly with the school to
monitor their progress in addressing ERO’s
findings. The school provides fortnightly reports
to the Ministry on their progress. These
progress reports include curriculum and
learning, and wellbeing improvement strategies.

ERO are currently undertaking a follow up
review, as planned in their 2023 review report,
of education within the Gloriavale community,
including preschool, Gloriavale Christian School,
homeschooling, and Te Kura. A review report
will be released later this year.

The Ministry will continue to work with the
school and with other agencies involved in
Gloriavale.




113 - @he government The Ministry’s actions to respond to this
3”? falth-hbas'gd recommendation are underway. To support the
entities shou findings and recommendations being

disseminate and
publicise the findings disseminated and publicised, the Ministry:

and Published updates on the report publication,
Recommendations of findings and next steps, on the staff intranet Te
this inquiry in the Tahuhu,

widest and most , ] A
transparent manner Contacted regional Directors with key messages

possible and a list of schools named in the report prior to
its release, to cnable regional staff to talk to the
relevant schools,

Underway Provided schools named in the report with key
messages that they may choose to share'in
their newsletter or website,

Notified school leaders throughthe:School
Leaders Bulletin of the release\of the final
report, links to the report/and-executive
summary, and next steps. The Bulletin is the
Ministry’s central channel for communicating
key informationio-school leaders, and

Published information including links to the final
report on its website.

Next steps for the Ministry of Education

The Ministry is taking part in cross-agency work led by the Crown Response Unit (CRU) to
analyse and triage the RCOI findings and recommendations. Priorities for the Crown

response include accelerating work on'the redress recommendations and identifying other
recommendations that can be actioned immediately to align with the timing of the apology.

This includes prioritising justice sector recommendations through an omnibus Bill that will
amend selected pieces of Jegislation. The Ministry and the CRU are discussing adding an
amendment to the Children’s Act 2014 to this Bill which will extend the existing workforce
restriction for core ¢hildren’s workers convicted of specified offences to people with known
equivalent overséas convictions.

The Ministry has also proposed adding a second amendment to the Bill to align the coverage
of the workforce restriction to the NZ Police’s Child Sex Offender Register. The amendments
seek tosstrengthen the system in place to reduce risk to children through people employed to
care for them. They link to wider work on safety checking (Recommendation 58).

The recommendations and findings of the RCOI raise significant policy issues and financial
implications for the Ministry, as it will do for many other departments. The Ministry will
continue to review the RCOI recommendations to understand how to best respond to these
in the coming months.

As many of the recommendations do not to fall into individual Ministerial portfolios but apply
across sectors, | have asked Ministry officials to continue cross-agency engagement, as well
as internal action, to advance this work.



Naku noa, na

Cg>

Hon Erica Stanford
Minister of Education



Hon Karen Chhour

Minister for Children
Minister for the Prevention of Family and Sexual Violence

10 September 2024 Q
Hon Erica Stanford Q®

Minister (Lead Co-ordination)
Government's Response to the Royal Commission’s Report into Historical Abuse ii K

State Care and in the Care of Faith-based Institutions A

Dear Minister Stanford \q

| am writing to outline Oranga Tamariki involvement in the Crowﬁbonse to the
recommendations made by the Royal Commission of Inquiry int se in Care (the
Royal Commission), including current work underway which go some way to
addressing particular recommendations, and new initiative ould be advanced.

Of the 138 Royal Commission recommendations, it Om,rently proposed that two
(recommendations 28 and 70) will be led by Oran ariki, 44 will be jointly led by
Oranga Tamariki with other agencies, and 44 quire only input from Oranga

Tamariki. 6

While the intent of many of these reco ations can be accepted, | believe that
further analysis is required before of them can be fully accepted. The
recommendations require a consi ble work programme and not all of this work
could be completed at the same time or in isolation, prioritisation of the work is an

i improvement.

More g&\@a"y, | note Cabinet has now confirmed that the CRU will move to a Crown
Response Office as part of the Public Service Commission to drive the implementation
. Q% work programme. It is important that as this is developed, they consider how to
\ﬂ cate and prioritise the work programme to ensure this remains a government
0 riority, has strong central agency leadership and there is clear accountability and
ownership across this work. Oranga Tamariki cannot take action in isolation of the

\0 rest of the Children’s System.
Q | am committed to addressing the issue of harm in care and resolving this alongside
communities and partners. It is important to acknowledge that the care environment is
different now from the experiences that survivors bravely shared of the inquiry period.

For example:

Private Bag 18041, Parlisment Buildings, Wellington 6160, New Zealand | +64 48176823 | k.chhour@ministers.govt.nz



We now have much smaller numbers of children placed in care facilities. Most
children in care are placed with whanau and this number has been growing over
the years.

The Residential Care Regulations 1996 sets out the rights of tamariki and
rangatabhi living in section 364 residential placements.

We have a comprehensive feedback and complaints process, and grievance
process, ensuring there is justice for tamariki and rangatahi who feel they have
been mistreated in care and ensuring that care providers are continually
improving their practice. The grievance process is set out in the Residential Care
Regulations 1966 and provides young people with access to an independent
Ministerial appointed panel.

VOYCE - Whakarongo Mai provides a valuable function in giving tamariki and
rangatahi an opportunity to share their care experiences and raise concerns with
an independent entity.

The National Care Standards Regulations 2018 sets out the standards tamariki
and rangatahi can expect to see in their care placement, and‘the Independent
Children’s Monitor regularly assesses Oranga Tamariki's-performance against
these standards.

Mana Mokopuna | Office of the Children's Commissioner also completes
Optional Protocol to the Convention Against Terture inspections at every
residence at least once a year, to identify malpractice that might reach the
threshold for torture.

There is a significant monitoring and oversight role across the Children’s System
that holds agencies to account and (contributes to improved outcomes for
children.

Policy proposals to amend the Oranga Tamariki Act 1989 are under development
to improve the safety of residences.

Oranga Tamariki and | are committed to doing better, we know we have a way to go,
and we appreciate the work of the families, communities and partners that are enabling
children in care to be safer, better supported, and cared for. Oranga Tamariki has
improvements in place and underway to prevent harm to any child or young people in
our care.

Oranga Tamarikieurrently has several work programmes underway that will contribute
to the Crownresponse to particular recommendations. These include:

Enabling” Communities — work to support devolution of care services to
communities

Manaaki Kdrero — work to improve feedback, complaints, grievance, information,
advice and assistance processes.

Residences and Homes work programme — work to transform our residences
and homes to ensure they are safe places where tamariki and rangatahi are
supported to thrive and successfully reintegrate with their whanau and
communities.

Embedding the Practice System — this work includes the Oranga Tamariki
Practice Approach, Workforce Strategy, Supervision Strategy, and work on
caseload benchmarks and quality assurance.

Frontline Technology Systems Upgrade — work to deliver a new frontline
technology system to replace the current Oranga Tamariki system. The



technology changes will support Oranga Tamariki practice, save staff time,
enable improved collaboration and information sharing with partners, and
improve the safety and oranga of tamariki, rangatahi and their family or whanau.

o Enterprise Data Analytics Platform — work to deliver a cloud-based data

the foundations for our future internal and external data and information

warehouse and analytics solution that that is safe, secure and private, and lays Q

requirements.

e  The Oranga Tamariki National Care Strategy - a long-term strategy for care, with Q®

key horizons to reach in the short and medium-term. The strategy will consid

what is in place both prior to care and when transitioning from care and Iooés

what is needed across the wider children’s system. This means e

ensuring the wider system is set up to support whanau and lon
arrangements when tamariki exit care. \

wherever possible for tamariki to be safely cared for within their v@ nd

policy and procedure improvements which will also contribute

care

nding to some

This list is not exhaustive, and does not include Oranga Ta:gg%ular process,

could be advanced in response to the Royal Commi recommendations.

of the recommendations.
In addition to the current work programmes underwa.s@are new initiatives that

Interim Claims function ’\\,

Following the Royal Commission Redress@port in December 2021, there were
d

several recommendations requiring agenci
until a future redress system could be lished.

evelop and prioritise claims functions

Oranga Tamariki has developed @prehensive claims framework and service prior

to the wider redress system bei
way that is sustainable. &

ablished, however this was not established in a

Further consideration needs to be given to establishing a stand-alone interim claims
function to progre%ims of abuse in the short term prior to this moving to the future

redress system.
and the fundi
November. @

e preparing information to support decisions on this function
resource required which could potentially be progressed by

Since elease of the Royal Commission report Oranga Tamariki has had an
increase in contact from potential claimants and this work is expected to continue to
i c@;se over the short term and prior to the future redress system being implemented.




Without further in-depth analysis into what additional work will be needed to fully
respond to the Royal Commission recommendations, the impact it will have on the
Tamariki work ramme and direction is unclear.

The key performance indicators | have set for Oranga Tamariki are:

e  Frequency of visits to children in care: the percentage of children.in care who
have been visited by their social worker at least once in the last eight weeks

¢ Timeliness around Reports of Concem: percentage of critical (within 24 hours)
and very urgent (within 48 hours) Reports of Concemn that)are addressed within
these timeframes

e  Supporting caregivers: results of a rolling survey of Oranga Tamariki caregivers,
which asks whether caregivers feel supported, would recommend becoming a
caregiver, and whether they are thinking about'stopping being a caregiver

. Improving complaint management and practices: the proportion of complaints
audited that were handled in a way thatfully'met Oranga Tamariki standards

e Addressing youth offending: a 15 percent reduction in the total number of children
and young people with serious and persistent offending behaviour.

These performance indicators haye, direct relevance to improving outcomes for
children and contributing to a safer.environment.

It is also important to note that'the Royal Commission clearly states in the report that
the recommendations need\to be considered in their entirety and not considered in
isolation of each other. Most of the recommendations require consideration by multiple
agencies, and span adult and children’s care services across multiple care domains.
This means multiple-agencies will be required to dedicate resource to enable proper
consideration of the recommendations.

| have instructed Oranga Tamariki to continue to work through analysing the Royal
Commission recommendations against current and future work requirements so that |
am better placed to consider what can be achieved in my portfolio and relevant
timeframes to progress this important work.

Yours sincerely

/)< ‘//_/‘.; w

&

Hon Karen Chhour
Minister for Children



Discussion paper

Initial decisions to support the development of a draft payment
framework for redress for abuse in care

For: Ministerial Group — Crown Response to the Abuse in Care Inquiry

Date: 10 September 2024 Security level:

Decision required

1. This paper seeks the Group’s endorsement of two aspects of payments to be made as part of a
redress system for survivors of abuse in care — the payments’ purpose and objectives— and
agreement to cross-agency work to prepare draft payment structure options'that address the
endorsed purpose and objectives. These aspects will shape a subsequent draft payment
framework for consideration by the Group.

2. Payments are a significant proportion of a redress system’s overallicost. Given the potential
financial implications, it is important the Ministerial Group has“sufficient time to consider the
different elements of a potential payment framework before options are taken forward to

Cabinet.

Recommended approach

3. Itisrecommended the Ministerial Group:

a) endorse that, in terms of its purpose, a payment made as part redress is:

intended to provide a tangible acknowledgement of a survivor’s experiences of
abuse, that complements a personal apology available to the survivor and the full
offerings of a redress. system; and

not intended.to be full compensation for the potentially complex and life-long effects
of the abuse;, which are better address through the support services to be offered as
part of-redress;

b) endorseithat, in terms of their overall objectives, the payments to be offered as part of
redress should be:

fair and reasonable — providing an appropriate degree of recognition of the abuse
suffered by survivors in different care contexts across time and within the context of
the other supports, services and compensation available to survivors through
redress and other systems;

transparent and simple to understand — so survivors have a clear understanding of
what is available and the basis on which payments are determined, to help reduce
the risk of re-traumatisation, and support confidence in the integrity of the system;

efficient to administer — to support timely delivery, minimise the proportion of
resources needing to go into the administration of the payments, and also support
confidence in the integrity of the system; and

financially viable — to help ensure redress can be provided as long as needed; and



c) direct that cross-agency work, coordinated by the Crown Response Unit working closely
with key agencies, is undertaken to produce draft options for payment structures that
address the endorsed purpose and objectives and focus on opportunities for moving
towards a simplified tiered structure.

Context: Payments represent a key parameter in the overall redress to be offered

4.

The Ministerial Group is considering key parameters for the re-design of redress in a stepped
process. The Group’s endorsed positions on each parameter will guide the options put forward
in planned Cabinet papers in October and December 2024, that will then shape the detailed
design and implementation of a new redress system.

The Ministerial Group has considered the overall functions for redress and eligibility.parameters
for who is covered by redress. There has been an initial consideration of how the fedress
functions are organised in terms of their level of integration and independence, with an
endorsement of a common payment framework as an aspect of integration. Further
consideration of the organisation of redress functions is needed at a future Group meeting
alongside the high-level funding model for redress.

Based on the endorsed redress functions (please see paragraph/9‘below), a series of key
frameworks need to be developed. This discussion paper will shape the development of a
payment framework for redress, which could potentially be applied ahead of a new system
across claims agencies and potentially other Crown redress processes such as those operated by
school boards of trustees..

Considerations for developing a redress payment framework

A payment framework should provide the overall structure for payments but is not meant
to be a detailed process guide

7.

The framework to be developed for Cabinet consideration is intended to provide the foundation
for redress payments, setting out:

a. the purpose and objectives for payments;

b. how payments/@are-structured — what they cover and for what value;

c. what standardsapply in their determination;

d. how theysshould be treated; and

e. the overall assistance that should be provided in considering and receiving a payment.
The.framework is not intended to be a detailed process guide for making payments. It sets the
high-level parameters that are the basis for the detailed processes and guidance needed to
make payments through the redress system. The development of the detailed payment
processes and guidance will need to be completed as part of the detailed design and

establishment of the redress system, to reflect all relevant aspects of the system once agreed by
Cabinet.

A payment is intended to be only one part of redress, which should be reflected in the
payment’s purpose being to acknowledge rather than fully compensate for abuse

9.

The Ministerial Group has endorsed five functions for a redress system:

a. provide a safe, supportive environment for survivors to share their experiences;



b. facilitate acknowledgements and apologies by institutions for abuse in care;
c. provide financial payments that acknowledge abuse in care;

d. facilitate access to support services that enable survivors to restore their inherent dignity;
and

e. share insights on systemic issues relevant to abuse in care and the harms experienced.

10. As can be seen from this list, payments are only one options within a wider redress system that
is intended to provide survivors with choice in having accountability for the abuse they
experienced and achieve a better quality of life. If survivors do not want to seek a payment, they
could still access an apology or support services. Survivors could alternatively choose to defer a
payment claim until they felt ready.

11. Inline with the Abuse in Care Royal Commission of Inquiry’s (the Royal Commissigh’s) findings,
as endorsed by the Redress Design Group, it is proposed that the payment’s purpese is to
acknowledge the abuse survivors have experienced and is not meant to act'as compensation for
the potentially complex and lifelong impacts of the abuse. The effects of abuse and neglect are
intended to be addressed through the support services provided by the/tédress system, and an
acknowledgement-based payment does not displace or replace survivors’ needs for support
facilitated through the system.

12. In addition to the redress system, the Royal Commission recomimended that survivors should be
able to more easily access the Accident Compensation, Scheme or have easier access to the
courts to seek compensation, if the survivor so wishéd: Consideration of the recommendations
related to ACC and civil litigation settings is being'coordinated by the Ministry of Business,
Innovation and Employment and the Ministry/©f Justice, with an initial view change should not
be made to expand the current settings. Separate advice on the Royal Commission’s ACC and
civil litigation recommendations will need tobe provided to the Ministerial Group.

13. The alternative to an acknowledgemént-based payment would be a full compensation payment.
Determining compensation for,specific experiences of abuse or neglect would require a complex
and time-consuming investigation and assessment approach that has significant potential to
retraumatise a survivor. A compensation payment would remove the need for a system to
provide support services; since it is intended to provide full monetary recompense for the
impacts of abuse on a_survivor’s life and would therefore allow a survivor to purchase whatever
individual services they wished to receive, subject to market availability.

There are multiple potential objectives for redress payments, and it is proposed a short list
is used to support the development of reasonable, workable payments

14. The asseéssment of payment framework options is potentially complex given the many objectives
that can apply to any form of payment. To avoid a potentially overwhelming multi-factor
assessment, a list of four objectives is recommended to guide the development and assessment
of options — that the payments to be offered as part of redress should be:

a. fairand reasonable — providing an appropriate degree of recognition of the abuse suffered
by survivors in different care contexts across time and within the context of the other
supports, services and compensation available to survivors through redress and other
systems;



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

b. transparent and simple to understand — so survivors have a clear understanding of what is
available and the basis on which payments are determined, to help reduce the risk of re-
traumatisation, and support confidence in the integrity of the system;

c. efficient to administer — to support timely delivery, minimise the proportion of resources
needing to go into the administration of the payments, and also support confidence in the
integrity of the system; and

d. financially viable —to help ensure redress can be provided as long as needed.
The four proposed payment objectives have the most direct impact on the overall experience
and place of payments in the redress system, particularly as identified through national and
overseas redress schemes and underscored by the Royal Commission. They also align with the

overall objectives for redress agreed by Cabinet — delivering accountability, supporting,improved
outcomes, and managing affordability and risks.

Alternatively, replacement objectives could be selected from the following two lists, derived
from initial work prepared by the Crown Response and added to by the Redress Design Group,
or any other objectives the Ministerial Group considers critical.

The Crown Response prepared a discussion document (in consultation with agencies and
subsequently endorsed by the Minister of Finance and Ministér.far the Public Service in the
previous administration), to assist the Redress Design Grodptin“preparing its high-level design
proposals. The discussion document set out a combination.of what was described by the Royal
Commission and had been learnt from national and'overseas redress processes, that the redress
system should:

a. provide fair and meaningful payments;

b. provide transparent, simple, and timely access to payments;

c. minimise the risk of retraumatiSing survivors;

d. be efficient to administer;

e. be equitable and financially viable over the long term; and

f.  have integrity to maintain survivor and public confidence.
The Redress Desigh/Group endorsed the objectives set out in the discussion document and
recommended the following additions, that the redress system should:

a. recognise survivors’ distinctive tukino (abuse, harm, neglect and trauma) and vulnerability;

b. recognise the effects of the survivors’ tikino on their whanau;

c~.alleviate needs caused by, or related to, their tukino;

d” encourage survivor to engage with other services and supports provided by the redress
system and;

e. respect and realise survivors’ human rights.

In considering potential alternatives, it should be noted a number of the objectives across the
two lists are in tension with each other. In particular, there is an inherent tension between on
the one hand the level of information and investigation needed to deliver a payment that
recognises a survivor’s specific and unique experiences and on the other hand the need to avoid
re-traumatising survivors through the process and deliver them in a timely and efficient manner.



20. While the Redress Design Group endorsed the Royal Commission’s proposal that redress should

21.

provide acknowledgement of abuse rather than compensation, its first three proposed
additional payment objectives (paragraphs 18.a—c) blur the boundary between
acknowledgement and compensation. For example, recognising subsequent harm, the effects on
whanau and alleviating needs caused by abuse would be more appropriately dealt with through
support services (which could include facilitating more streamlined access to ACC), and are part
of decisions yet to be made about supports by the Ministerial Group.

The Redress Design Group’s last two additional recommended objectives (paragraphs 18.d-e)
speak to the broader purpose of the redress system and the full range of functions it offers,
rather than to payments directly. Accordingly, the five additional objectives are not
recommended for use as assessment tools for payment options.

The way payments are structured is important to give effect to their overall purpose and
objectives, as well as having significant fiscal implications

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

There are three broad choices for payment structure to acknowledge abuseiin“care — a uniform
flat payment, tiered payments with defined steps reflecting different |levels of experience, or a
finely graded payment reflecting combinations or lists of individual-experiences.

The payment structure used in a redress system has significant impacts on its complexity and
timeliness, impacting on survivors’ experience of that system, and its overall cost, impacting its
financial viability. The proposed payment objectives, per’ recommendation 3(b) above, should
allow an appropriate balance to be struck betweenthese<different impacts.

Most current abuse claims processes in New Zealand operate a mix of tiered payments and
finely graded assessments. While seeking to.be meaningful, these approaches can be difficult for
survivors to understand and sometimes complex to administer. There are resulting impacts on
timeliness and the level of information.needed from survivors, which can be retraumatising.

Australia’s federal redress schemeé (covering sexual abuse in a wide range of settings) is more
akin to a finely graded assessment, using a formula-based approach taking into account different
parameters to derive a final payment amount. This approach seeks to provide more meaningful
payments but is complexito administer, with significant resource implications and is associated
with fairly lengthy waittimes.

Scotland’s redréss scheme (which covers multiple abuse types in different care settings) operates
a tiered payment structure with five steps of fixed monetary values. This seeks to balance being
meaningful with being simpler to understand and more efficient to administer. To date this
schemegenerally has lower resource demands and is more timely than New Zealand processes.

The Redress Design Group proposed a modified form of the Scottish approach that took into
account both the abuse experienced and some aspects of the resulting harm. The Royal
Commission did not recommend a specific payment structure but envisaged a payment
approach that took into account different survivor experiences, and which sought to convey an
appropriate level of meaningfulness in whatever payments were to be provided.

Next steps

28.

It is proposed that, subject to the Ministerial Group endorsing a payment purpose and
objectives, the Crown Response Unit works closely with key agencies (including the Treasury,
Crown Law, and current claims agencies) to produce a set of payment structure options for the



29.

Ministerial Group’s subsequent consideration. Drawing on international experience and the
recommendations of the Design Group, the options would likely focus on the opportunity of
moving towards a simplified tiered payment structure.

Advice on the options would include an assessment against the objectives, potential cost
estimates (taking into account both overall demand and the potential spread of tiered and
graded payment options), and consideration of the balance of resources for payments versus
support services (as the other element of redress that has significant resource and cost

implications).





